Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid l%}?Bl‘lte
Customer Services COUNCIL

Executive Director: Douglas Hendry

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 015646 602127 Fax: 01546 604435
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk

6 February 2012

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL

CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on MONDAY, 13 FEBRUARY 2012 at 2:00 PM, which
you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director - Customer Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3. CONSIDER NOTICE OF REVIEW: 91A PRINCES STREET EAST,
HELENSBURGH, G84 7DQ

(@)  Notice of Review and Supporting Documents (Pages 1 - 64)
(b)  Comments from Interested Parties

(i) Comments from Representee (Pages 65 — 66)

(ii) Comments from Planning Authority (Pages 67 - 80)

(c)  Applicant's Response to Comments from Interested Parties (Pages 81 - 84)
ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Councillor Mary-Jean Devon Councillor Kinniburgh
Councillor Roderick McCuish (Chair)

Contact: Fiona McCallum Tel: 01546 604406



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref
AB1

Page 1 Agenda ltem 3a

QOFFICIAL USE
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL |
WWW.ARGYLL-BUTE.GOV.UK/M** 5 &({
A
NOTICE OF REVIEW Date Received

Notice of Request for Review under Section 43(a)8

of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 and the Town and
Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local Review Procedures
(Scotland) Regulations 2008

Important - Please read the notes on how to complete this form and use
Block Capitals. Further information is available on the Council’'s Website,
You should, if you wish, seek advice from a Professional Advisor on how to

complete this form.

(1) APPLICANT FOR REVIEW ' (2) AGENT (if any)
Name MR PEOPIES Name TAN MACTEOD
Address | 91 A PRINCES Address | 2 KIDSON DRIVE
STREET REAST HET ENSRTIRGH
HET.ENSRITRGH
Postcode| Ggra DO Postcode | (84 ROA
Tel, No. Tel. No. | 01436 671807
Email Email ian.macleod.architect
@googlemail.com
(3) Do you wish correspondence to be sent to you oryour agent | X
(4) (a) Reference Number of Planning Application [ 11/00518/PPP
{b) Date of Submission 30/03/2011
(c) Date of Decision Notice (if applicable) 21/10/2011

(5) Address of Appeal Property

91A, PRINCES STREET EAST
HELENSBURGH G384 7DQ




(6) Description of Proposal

(7)

Page 2

ERECTION OF DWELLIGHOUSE
( IN PRINCIPLE )

Please set out the detailed reasons for requesting the review:-

SEE ATTACHED STATEMENT

If insufficient space please continue on a separate page. Is this is

attached?

X

(Please tick to confirm)




Page 3

(8) If the Local Review Body determines that it requires further information on
“specified matters” please indicate which of the following procedure you would
prefer to provide such information :-

(a) Dealt with by written submission

(b) Dealt with by Local Hearing

(c) Dealt with by written submission and site inspection X

(d) Dealt with by local hearing and site inspection

NB It is @ matter solely for the Local Review Body to defermine if further information
is required and, if so, how it should be obtained.

(9) Please list in the schedule all documentation submitted as part of the
application for review ensuring that each document corresponds to the
numbering in the sections below:-

Schedule of documents submitted with Notice of Review (Note: 3 paper
copies of each of the documents referred to in the schedule below

must be attached):

No. Detail

1 Planning Application Form

2 Report of Handling — Application — 11/00518/PPP

3 Refusal Notice — Application — 11/00518/PPP

4 Refused Plans - Application — 11/00518/PPP

5 Copy of Report and Refusal Notice by Dumbarton District Council
on Application C. 7044 - 1983

6 Copy of Appeal Decision including Dumbarton District Council’s
case for refiisal of Application C.7658 — Appeal
Ref - P/PPA/SH/97 - 1987

7

8

9




Page 4

10
If insufficient space please continue on a separate page. Is this is
attached? (Please tick to confirm)
Submitted by (==
ubmitted by //{L@@ s ;
(Please Sign) @l T Dated ZZ/ | 2 [zoH
AT

Important Notes for Guidance

1. All matters which the applicant intends to raise in the review must
be set out in or accompany this Notice of Review

2. All documents, materials and evidence which the applicant
intends to rely on in the Review must accompany the Notice of
Review UNLESS further information is required under Regulation
15 or by authority of the Hearing Session Rules.

3. Guidance on the procedures can be found on the Council’s

website — www.argyil-bute.gov.uk/
4. I in doubt how to proceed please contact 01546 604406 or email

localreviewprocess@argyll-bute.gov.uk

5. Once compieted this form can be either emailed to
localreviewprocess@argyll-bute.qov.uk or returned by post to
Committee Services (Local Review Board), Kilmory,
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT

6. You will receive an acknowledgement of this form, usually by
electronic mail (if applicable), within 14 days of the receipt of your
form and supporting documentation.

If you have any queries relating to the completion of this form please contact
Committee Services on 01546 6044086 or email localreviewprocess@argyll-

bute.gov.uk

For official use only

Date form issued




Page 5

Issued by (please sign)




Page 6

Page 1 of 31Page

Notice of Review Statement

On the Delegated Refusal for the erection of a Dwellinghouse ( in principle )

in Garden Ground of 91A Princes Street East Helensburgh Argyll and Bute G84 7DQ

for Mr Peoples
91A Princes Street East Helensburgh G84 7DQ

Application Ref. - 11/00518/PPP

December 2011

By




Page 2 of 31Page

Page 7

Prepared by

lan MacLeod Chartered Architect
2 Kidston Drive

Helensburgh G84 8QA




Page 8
Page 3 of 31Page
Contents
1.0 Local Review Statement Aims,
2.0 Site Context
3.0 Planning History
4.0 Appraisal of the Proposal
Spatial Analysis - Density / Plot Sizes
Townscape Appraisal
Landscape Elements

Development Plan Policies
Argyll and Bute Council Design Guide

HEOR P

3.0 Other Material Considerations
6.0 Conclusions

7.0 List of Productions




| .
(G EE I D BN R A v D BN S D B e B BT SR e B mE e

Page 9

Page 4 of 31Page

1.0

2.0
2.1

22

2.3

2.4

Local Review Statement aims

This statement aims to fully illustrate to the Local Review Body that the proposal under
consideration would -

o  Have regard to the character and density of surrounding development and that the
development layout and density would be effectively integrated with the existing
streetscape/townscape setting and as such would constitute an acceptable density
within this inner urban area.

¢ Be an acceptable development in relation to the existing development pattern.
»  Not unacceptably erode the remaining open character of this existing property.
e  Not constitute a dominant or obtrusive form of development within the area.

¢  Maintain the existing streetscape elements of the area.

e  Not constitute a visually intrusive or discordant development to the detriment of
the character of the residential area.

e Bein accordance with the provisions of the adopted Argyil and Bute Local Plan

Site Context

The site which is relatively flat 1s located within the curtilage of an unlisted traditional
Victorian villa which has been converted into ground and first floor premises. The
ground floor flat in which the appellant resides is designated as 91a, Princes Street East
and the upper flat as 91b, Princes Street East.

The villa 1s located to the rear of the curtilage some 39 m. from Princes Street East.

The appeal site is located to the front of the existing villa, This front garden area is at
present divided between the two properties with 91a having a garden area of some 860
sq.m. { some 760 sq. m. excluding the access driveway along the front of the property
which serves 91c Princes Street East ) and 91b a garden area of some 160 sq.m.

The site which is some 23m. in width by some 23.5m. in depth ( some 540 sq.m.) is
located within this front garden area associated with 91a Princes Street East as
illustrated on the submitted plans. A footprint of the proposed dwellinghouse is shown
on the submitted plans. This however is indicative at this stage as the application is in
principle although it is proposed that this dwellinghouse be single storey in height.




Page 10

Page 5 of 31Page

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

35

3.6

The existing property at 91a Princes Street East would therefore have a reduced front
garden area amounting to some 320 sq. m. It should be noted that this property also has
a side/rear garden area of some 205 sq. m. which would remain unaffected by the
proposal.

The front garden area associated with the upper property at 91b Princes Street East
would remain as present and be unaffected by the proposal.

There are two other properties ( 91 and 91c Princess Street East ) located to the rear of
the area adjacent to the railway which take access from the shared access road off
Princes Street East. These plot areas are unaffected by the proposal.

The site would therefore be bounded by -

a. To the south by the existing 1.8m. high stone wall which forms the boundary onto
Princes Street East.

b. To the east by the boundary wall of the property at 97 Princes Street East.

¢. To the north by the garden area associated with the lower property of the Victorian
Villa,

d. To the west by the garden ground associated with the upper property of the
Victortan villa across which is the common access road then a hedge on the
boundary of the adjacent property.

Access to the property would be taken from a new driveway from Princes Street East
located at the eastern end of the site adjacent to 97 Princes Street East.

History

As previously mentioned the existing Victorian villa has in the past been converted into
two properties consisting of upper and lower flats.

Two dwellinghouses have been constructed to the west and east of the original Villa
( 91 and 91¢ Princes Street East) A further dwellinghouse has also been constructed to
the east of the site under review adjacent to the main road ( 97 Princes Street East )

Planning Permission was refused in 1983 by Dumbarton District Council for the
erection of a dwellinghouse on the site ( Ref — C7044 — Production No. 5)

In 1986 planning Permission was refused by Dumbarton District Council for the
erection of a dwellinghouse on the site ( Ref— C7658 )

This refusal was subsequently dismissed on appeal in 1987 { Ref — P/PPA/SH/97 —
Production No. 6 )

The planning application for the erection of a dwellinghouse ( in principle ) which 1s
the subject of this review was validated by Argyll and Bute Council on 30" March
2011.

The application was dully considered and refused by delegated powers on 21* October
2011.
The reasons for refusal were —




Page 11

Page 8 of 31Page

3.7

4.0

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character
and value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue
of its relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front
of the existing villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property
and would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form of development.
Consequently, the further sub-division of the curtitage and the erection of a
dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing traditional property would
erode and undermine the remaining vahie it has in the streetscape, would be visually
intrusive, visually discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the
area. As such it would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A
of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and the Council’s Design Guide which require that
new development maintains and enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has
regard to the character and density of surrounding development and that development
layout and density be effectively integrated with the streetscape/townscape setting.

{ Production No. 3)

This delegated refusal forms the basis of this review.

Appraisal of the Proposal

The following analysis is an appraisal of the proposal in relation to the spatial aspects
of the area, the overall streetscape character, landscape elements, its compliance with
Development Plan Policies, an evaluation of the points raised in the Report of Handling
on the application and the Reasons for Refusal,

A, Spatial Analysis
1. Density

a. The area which is predominantly residential is characterised by a wide range of
house types including traditional villas, more modern detached and semi
detached houses and tenement / flatted properties.

b.  The tenement / flaited properties have relatively small plots with a high urban
density of between 100 — 120 dwellings per hectare.

¢. These tenement / flatted properties are located at the corner of Adelaide Street
and the corner of George Street to the north of Princes Street East and also
across this road to the south.

d. Although these properties form part of the overall housing pattern of the area
the site under review is more related to the housing pattern along the north of
Princes Street East between the tenement blocks. This area can be assessed as
being bounded to the south by Princes Street East, to the north by the railway




Page 12

Page 7 of 31Page

and to the east by 97 Princes Street East and to the west by 81 Princes Street
East.

Within this area there is a mixed pattern of development with some sub-
division of plots which has taken place throughout the years.

This area measure some 0.75ha ( 7500 sq.m. ) and within 1t there are some 18
residential units. This relates to an overall density of around 24 dwellings per
hectare.

The addition of one house within this area would result in an overall density of
25 dwellings per hectare for the identified urban block.

If we natrow the identifiable area within this block to the former curtilage of
the original Victorian villa then this gives us an area of 0.325ha ( 3250 sq. m.)
Within this curtilage area there are at present 5 dwellings resulting in a density
of 15 dwellings per hectare

The addition of one house within this area would result in an overall density of
18 dwellings per hectare for the identified curtilage.

No single figure can be given as a correct net residential density, but the
Sustainable Housing Design Guide for Scotland commissioned by
Communities Scotland and published by the Government in 2000 indicated
that — ‘Densities of 40-50 Dwellings Per Hectare should be easily obtainable
without damaging residential quality in most circumstances - current suburban
densities are 20 Dwellings Per Hectare or lower in many areas’.

Considering these points made in this Design Guide the proposed density for
the identified block of 25 dwellings per hectare is compatible with modern
inner community living standards. As, is no doubt realised densities tend to be
higher within inner areas of towns than the outlying suburban areas.

Again considering these points made in this Design Guide the proposed
density for the identified curtilage area of 18 dwellings per hectare is a fairly
low density for inner urban areas and relates more favourably to out of centre
suburban standards.

The overall density of the area would therefore only be marginally increased
by the proposal and would still be well within accepted spatial parameters for
inner urban areas.

The proposal therefore would respect the character and density of the
surrounding area and the development density would reflect and be compatible
with existing density standards within this inner urban area and be effectively
integrated with the streetscape/iownscape density setting,




Page 13

Page & of 31Page

2.

a.

Plot Sizes

As stated there is a fairly varied pattern of development in the area on a wide
variety of plot sizes.

The tenement properties have shared rear gardens and due to their nature
exhibit a high plot ratio of occupancy to amenity / garden area. As stated
however the site in question really relates more to the development pattern
along the area to the north of Princes Street East outwith these tenement areas.
Within this area there are the following plot sizes —

. 81, Princes Street East — Council Flats — 570 sq. m.

J 24 and 26 George Street — semi detached houses ( Rear lane access from
George Street ) 200 sq. m. per property.

) 83, Princes Street East — detached house — 570 sq. m.

) 83, Princes Street East — detached house — 495 sq. m.

. 87, Princes Street East — detached villa — 975 sq. m. ( this property
would appear to be sub divided which could result in plot sizes of some
487 sq. m. although this has been difficult to ascertain on site )

. 89, Princes Street East - detached villa— 1170 sq. m. ( this property
would appear to be sub divided which could result in plot sizes of some
585 sq. m. although this has been difficult to ascertain on site )

) 01, Princes Street East — detached house — 425 sq. m.

o 91a, Princes Street East — sub divided villa ( the appellants property ) —
1065 sq. m. — this would be reduced to some 525 sq. m. if planning

permission is granted.

) 91b, Princes Street East - sub divided villa - 450 sq. m. (including front
garden area of 160 sq. m.

o 91¢, Princes Street East — detached house — 495 sq. m.

) 97, Princes Street East — detached house — 450 sq. m.

There is therefore as can be ascertained a wide range of plot sizes within this
identified area with an average of around 420 — 440 sq. m. per plot.

Even if we exclude the Council flats at 81, Princes Street east which form part
of the identified area there is still a wide range of plot sizes within this
identified area with an average of around 530 — 630 sq. m. per plot.




Page 14

Page 9 of 31Page

If we were to restrict the area even further and only consider the curtilage of
the existing villa this would give an average plot size within this curtilage of
some 650 sq. m. This of course reflects the large area of existing garden
ground owned by the appellant of some 1060 sq. m.

If the proposed house were constructed on the site this would result in an
average plot size of some 540 sq. m.

The proposed plot size of some 540 sq. m. would therefore be compatible with
the overall surrounding plot size pattern and would in fact be larger than
around 60% of the plots within the larger identified area and 80% of the plots
within the identified original curtilage of the villa.

In the Report of Handling ( Production No. 2 — Report of Handling ) the
Delegated Officer states — “Sites in the area exhibit differing densities some of
which are compatible with the proposal’ and ‘Plot sizes in the vicinity vary
and are generally larger than the proposed plot although there are a few of
comparable or smaller size notably the two plots to the north of the site
adjacent to the railway’. This as can be seen from the above analysis is not
quite a true reflection of the overall density or plot size patterns as the
proposed plot is compatible with the overall density of the area and would be
larger than the majority of plots in the area.

As illustrated on the submitted plans a modest dwellinghouse could be
accommodated with adequate amenity area within the plot. That the size of the
plot is adequate to accommodate a house has been recognised by the
Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling which states — “the site is within
the settlement boundary, is not within a Conservation Area and is big enough
to accommodate a modest dwelling’.

B. Townscape

1.

The surrounding Townscape is characterised principally by two elements. The
first is a series of tenement / flatted blocks and the second a series of mainly
detached dwellings.

To the south of Princes Street East there is a mixture of buildings with 2 to 3
storey high tenement / flatted properties and a single storey building used by
the Red Cross.

The north side of Princes Street East in the vicinity again has 2 to 3 storey high
tenement / flatted properties. These are situated at the corner of Adelaide
Street and the corner of George Street and ajong with the railway to the north
can be seen as defining the edge of what has previously been ascertained to be
the wider urban block which relates to the proposal.

However, although as previously outlined these properties form part of the
overall housing pattern of the area the site under review is more related to the
housing pattern along the north of Princes Street East between these tenement




Page 15

Page 10 of 31Page

i0.

11.

12,

13.

14

blocks. This area can therefore in Townscape terms be assessed as being
bounded to the south by Princes Street East, to the north by the railway and to
the east by No. 97 Princes Street East and to the west by No. 81 Princes Street
East, the same area which was considered in the previous spatial analysis,

Within this area again there is range of house types including Council flatted
property, two storey and single storey semi — detached and detached
dwellinghouses of varying designs from traditional to modern.

Although it is difficult to ascertain the exact form of the original development
at present the area is characterised by a degree of tandem development.

This aspect of tandem development is evident to the west end of the block
where the property at No. 85, Princes Street East 1s located in front of No. 83,
Princes Street East with this property taking access along the side of No. 85.

Further to the west there is also what could be considered tandem development
in relation to No. 81 Princes Street East and the semi- detached properties
behind although they are served by a rear lane from George Street.

To the east of the proposal No. 97, Princes Street East is in tandem with the
property behind at No. 91c¢.

Again this sense of tandem development is reinforced by the garages at Nos.85
and 87 which are built in front of these properties onto Princes Street East.

The proposal under consideration would merely be adhering to this
established pattern of development.

The proposal would be situated in the large front garden of 91a Princes Street
East. The boundary of the plot however at its nearest point would be situated
some 13m. from the existing properties to the rear. The house would be
situated over 18m. from these properties which adheres to current window to
window development standards. In essence these standards are similar if not
greater than the distances between dwellings found throughout Helensburgh
both 1n traditional buildings and new dwellings and housing estates.

It should be noted that at present there are no Policies within the adopted
Local Plan which specifically indicate that tandem development is
unsatisfactory and as such the inference is that tandem development ( within
site specific parameters such as overdevelopment etc ) is considered an
acceptable form of development in Helensburgh. Indeed there are numerous
examples not only in the vicinity as outlined but throughout Helensburgh
where tandem development has been considered acceptable.

The right of a view from a property is not considered under current Planning
Legislation as a right. It is of course important to householders. At present
long views from properties within the curtilage of the villa over the Clyde are
restricted by the tenement properties across Princes Street East and the new
house at No 97 Princes Street East, although this house is also viewed against




Page 16

Page 11 of 31Page

15.

16.

the backdrop of these tenements. If a new house was built on the proposed site
it would also be viewed against the backdrop of these tenements. Views
outwith the site down the existing access and Glenfintas Street would be
maintained. Notwithstanding these points it should however again be
emphasised that the right to a view is not considered a material planning
consideration. This of course would again apply to any views across Princes
Street East from the tenements located to the south of this road.

Within the Report of Handling great emphasis is placed on the concept of an
erosion of the open character of the area surrounding the site.

The following streetscape aspects should be considered in relation to this
concept —

e As previously illustrated there is a varied streetscape along Princes Street
East and the openness to buildings has been largely restrained by other
buildings fronting onto the road.

¢ Approaching from the east along Princes Street East views into the existing
villa are limited by the tenement properties and the new house to the east of
the proposed site which fronts onto the road.

e The views are again limited into the villa by the 1.8m boundary wall along
Princes Street East.

e From the east therefore the concept of an open character is severely limited
by these physical elements.

» From the west views into the area of the original villa will be maintained
through the existing access which will remain and also across the area
infront of Nos. 87 and 89 Princes Street East.

o In this context therefore the erection of a house on the plot will not lead to
an unacceptable diminution of the limited open aspect of the original villa.

e From the south longer views from Glenfinlas Street will be maintained into
the site due to the siting of the proposed dwellinghouse. As such there will
be no appreciable loss of the limited open aspect in relation to the original
villa from this area.

o Itis proposed to construct a single storey dwellinghouse. In this respect
basically only the roof will be visible over the existing boundary wall onto
Princes Street East. The mass and proportions of this roof when seen in
perspective would not unacceptably lessen any sense of open character of
the area when viewed from the limited confines of the adjacent road.

¢ From the lower properties across Princes Street East there would be little
change to the sense of any limited open character as the house would
largely be contained behind the existing boundary wall and as such would
not erode any considered open characier to an unacceptable degree.




Page 17

Page 12 of 31Page

¢ From the upper flats across Princes Street East the proposed dwellinghouse

would be seen in the wider context of development in the area mainly as a
continuation of the existing building pattern. The limited open aspect of the
villa would be maintained by views across the roof which in an urban
context is acceptable. The introduction of a dwellinghouse on the site
therefore would not in the overall context of the built up nature of the
vicinity lead to an unacceptable loss of any limited open character.

17. As illustrated therefore, the construction of a dwellinghouse on the proposed

site would not unacceptably erode any limited value of open character that
remains in the vicinity. Also, due to its siting and location which would be
largely screened by the existing watl would it form a dominant or obtrusive
development and as such would not be detrimental to the overall streetscape of
the area.

C. Landscape elements

1.

The plot being garden ground is characterised by mainly shrubbery and a line
of trees along the boundary of Princes Street East and another tree to the north
of the site.

It is proposed to retain the tree adjacent to the existing access to the villa but
the other three trees along the boundary wall onto Princes Street East would
have to be removed to atlow the construction of the dwellinghouse and
associated access. It is also likely that the tree to the north of the site would
also have to be removed but this would depend on the exact location of the
proposed dwellinghouse.

These trees along the boundary with Princes Street East have been severely
pollarded over the years and now are poor specimens having a misshapen and
stump like appearance. This has resulted in a total loss of their visual and
landscape function, Their appearance has been so diminished to the point that
they now make no positive visual contribution to the landscape or townscape
features of the area.

This assessment has been recognised by the Delegated Officer in the Report of
Handling on the application when it is stated - ‘Three mature trees could be
compromised by the proposed house and access. Whilst the trees have value
and the Council has a duty to protect good specimens I am of the view that
their value is limited’.

It should be noted that as these trees are not located within a Conservation
Area or covered by a Tree Preservation Order they could at any time be
removed by the applicant without any recourse from the Council.

It is proposed to introduce new planting and landscaping in agreement with the
Council as part of the overall development of the plot. As this application is in




Page 18

Page 13 of 31Page

principle these details would be provided with any subsequent application
should permission be granted.

7. Boundary treatment would also be finalised in any subsequent applicatton, It is
proposed to retain the stone boundary wall fronting Princes Street East apart
for the new access to the site. The boundary wall to the east would also be
retained and new boundary treatment along the north and west could with
agreement with the Council be either suitable fencing or hedging or a mixture
of the two which would soften the aspect between the proposed house and the
existing villa.

8. In essence therefore the removal of the poor trees on the site would not
adversely affect the visual or landscape elements associated with the overall
townscape and replacement planting would help to soften and integrate any
subsequent development into the townscape.

D. Local Plan Policies

The following points are an appraisal of the proposal in relation to the relevant sections
of the Local Plan Policies contained in the adopted Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.

1. Policy L? ENV 1 Development Impact on the General Environment - states -
that

In all development control zones, the Council will assess applications for planning
permission for their impact on the natural, human and built environment, and will
resist development proposals which would not take the following considerations
into account, namely:

» The development is of a form, location and scale consistent with Structure
Plan Policies STRAT DC 1 to 6:

e All development should protect, restore or where possible enhance the
established character and local distinctiveness of the landscape in terms of its
location, scale, form and design.

» The relationship to the road and public transport network, means of access,
particularly access for the physically impaired, emergency services, parking
provision, and likely scale and type of traffic generation;

o The availability of infrastructure and relationship to existing community
facilities;

s Current Government guidance, other policies in the Argyll and Bute Structure
and Local Plan and particularly those relating to the proposed type of
developiment.




Page 19

Page 14 of 31Page

Appraisal -

e Being located within the settlement boundary of Helensburgh the proposal for
the erection of a dwellinghouse is in accordance with the provisions of Policy
STRAT DC1 of the 2002 Structure Plan.

e As outlined previously in this report the proposal will restore and enhance
landscape elements in the area.

e The proposal as indicated by the Area Manger Roads has a satisfactory access.
Being located near the town centre it has a satisfactory relationship with
existing roads and the public transport network, general infrastructure and
community facilities.

o As outlined in this report the proposal is consistent with the relevant policies in
the Argyll and Bute Structure and Local Plan.

Considering these points the proposal is compatible with the aims of Policy LP
ENV 1 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan.

Policy LP HOU 1 General Housing Development states that -

There is a general presumption in favour of housing development other than those
categories, scales and locations of development listed in (B) below. Housing
development, for which there is a presumption in favour, will be supported uniess
there is an unacceptable environmental, servicing or access impact.

(B) There is a general presumption against housing development when it involves:
In the settlements:

1. large-scale housing development in small towns and villages and minor
settlements;

2. medium-scale housing development in the minor settlements.

Housing Developments are also subject to consistency with other policies of both
the Structure and Local Plan.

Appraisal -

e The proposal is for one dwellinghouse within the settlement boundary and as
such does not constitute large or medium housing development.

e  As outlined in this report the proposal is consistent with the relevant policies in
both the Structure and Local Plans.

As there is a general presumption in favour of housing development within the
settlement boundary for small scale development and there is as illustrated no
unacceptable environmental, servicing or access impact and the development is
consistent with the relevant policies in both the Structure and Local Plans the
proposal conforms with the provisions of Policy LP HOU 1 of the Argyll and Bute
Local plan.




Page 20

Page 15 of 31Page

Policy LP ENV 19 Development Setting, Layout and Design - states that

The Council will require developers and their agents to produce and execute a high
standard of appropriate design in accordance with the design principles set out in
Appendix A of this Local Plan, the Council’s sustainable design guide and the
following criteria: -

) Developmenf Setting -

Development shall be sited and positioned so as to pay regard to the context within
which it is located.

Appraisal —

As illustrated in this report the proposal has taken account of and conforms to the
development pattern in the area.

e Development Layout and Density -

Development layout and density shall effectively integrate with the urban,
suburban or countryside setting of the development. Layouts shall be adapted, as
appropriate, to take into account the location or sensitivity of the area.
Developments with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and over-shadowing of sites shall be resisted.

Appraisal —

The proposal is, as outlined in this report consistent with the overall urban pattern
and setting of development in the area. It is within the identified density parameters
of the area and would not increase the overall density to an unacceptable level. The
site as stated in the Report of Handling is capable in size of accommodating a
dwellinghouse and as such along with the acceptable density ratio does not
represent overdevelopment of the site. As also outlined in the Report of Handling
there are no concerns of any overshadowing of adjacent properties from the
proposal.

o  Development Design -

The design of developments and structures shall be compatible with the
surroundings. Particular attention shall be made to massing, form and design
details within sensitive locations such as National Scenic Areas, Areas of
Panoramic Quality, Greenbelt, Very Sensitive Countryside, Sensitive Countryside,
Conservation Areas, Special Built Environment Areas, Historic Landscapes and
Archaeologically Sensitive Areas, Historic Gardens and Designed Landscapes and
the settings of listed buildings and Scheduled Ancient Monuments. Within such
locations, the quality of design will require to be higher than in other less sensitive
locations,

Appraisal —




Page 21

Page 16 of 3tPage

SI

The application was submitted for the erection of a dwellinghouse in principle. As
such there was no requirement to submit any detailed design drawings of the
proposed dwellinghouse. The proposal is basically for a single storey modest
dwellinghouse. The design of the dwellinghouse would be addressed during any
subsequent planning application if approved and this design would respect and be
compatible with the context and design of surrounding buildings.

Considering these points and the compliance with the criteria set out in Appendix
A of this Local Plan and the Council’s Sustainable Design Guide as illustrated in
this report the proposal is compatible with the provisions of Policy LP ENV 19 of
the Argyll and Bute Local Plan,

Policy LP TRAN 6 - Vehicle Parking Provision — states that

e  Off-street car and vehicle parking shall be provided for development on the
following basis:

Car parking standards

The car parking standards (including disabled parking) set out in Appendix C
shall be applied to those specified categories of development.

Appendix C — Access and Parking Standards
Housing (Use Class 9) and Flatted Dwellings

1.5 spaces per 1 bedroom unit
2 spaces per 2-3 bedroom unit
3 spaces per 4 or more bedrooms

Appraisal -

Although the submitted plan illustrated an indicative footprint of a dwellinghouse it
is envisaged that given the size of the plot up to 3 car parking spaces including
garaging could be accommodated on the site. This would be compatible with car
parking standards contained within Appendix C for a four bedroom dwellinghouse
although as previously stated it is only proposed to erect a modest dwellinghouse
on the site. It should also be noted that the Area Manager Roads raised no
objections with regards to the illustrative parking arrangement.

Considering these points the site is capable of accommodating adequate off street
parking provision and therefore the proposal is compatible with the standards of
Policy LP TRAN 6 of the Argyll and Bute Local plan.

Appendix A — Local Plan

This section of the Local Plan sets out Sustainable Siting and Design Principles

which should be considered and addressed in developments.

The relevant points in relation to this application under review are —




Page 22

Page 17 of 31Page

o Landscaping and Boundaries: Where privacy and amenity is important,
built form should be screened or buffered from viewpoints (e.g. access ways)
by using appropriate native planting. Existing planting and hedges should be
supplemented and/or retained where possible. Hard-landscaping should be
kept to a minimum and will work best when its colour is close to that of the
tocal stone. Boundaries will either integrate a site into the landscape or alienate
it. While the ideal of a dry stane dyke may not always be possible, the most
unobtrusive alternative is post and wire fencing. Native hedging and/or vertical
boarded fences may also be appropriate, but horizontal ranch-style fencing or
block-work often appears to look very out-of-place. - and -

o Landscaping : Landscaping can significantly assist the integration of new
development within the built or natural environment. Landscaping can take the
form of soft or hard features and performs its function best when designed as
an integral aspect of a new design.

Response —

As previously stated the application is for the erection of a dwellinghouse in
principle. As such no specific landscape or boundary treatments were indicated.
These would be detailed in any subsequent applications. It is however proposed as
previously indicated to retain the stone wall fronting Princes Street East and the
boundary wall between the property and the dwellinghouse to the east at 97,
Princes Street East. It is proposed to enclose the boundaries of the site on the open
garden ground to the west and north with either a suitably designed 1.8m. high
vertically boarded fence or hedging or a mixture of both. Suitable replacement tree
planting would also be integrated into the scheme. Hard landscaping would be kept
to a minimum being basically used on the access driveway and any associated
garden paths. All these landscape features would soften the aspect between the
proposed house and the existing villa and the surrounding area. These landscape
and boundary treatments could of course be appropriately conditioned if
considered necessary by the Review Body if it is of the opinion that the proposal is
acceptable in principle.

e Parking: Car parking areas should not be dominant features which are highly
visible from access ways or dominate views from within buildings. Other
things to consider are services provision (power, telephone, water and
sewerage) as well as proximity to community facilities and services (such as
schools, shops or bus-routes).

Response -

The car parking area would be located to the front of the proposed dwellinghouse
and behind the existing wall onto Princes Street East. It would be visually
contained between the proposed dwellinghouse and this wall and as such would not
constitute a dominant feature in the townscape. There is also adequate service
provision to the site and proximity to community facilities and services.




Page 23

Page 18 of 31Page

o  Open Space/Density: all development should have some private open space
(ideally a minimum of 100 sq m), semi-detached/ detached houses (and any
extensions) should only occupy a maximum of 33% of their site, although this
may rise to around 45% for terrace and courtyard developments.

Response -

Although the proposal is in principle an indicative footprint of a dwellinghouse
was included in the application. The proposed dwellinghouse and garage although
as stated indicative measured some 138 sq. m, floor area. This represents some
25% of the plot. The useable private garden area would be some 340 sq. m. The
plot therefore is capable of accommodating a modest dwellinghouse and
maintaining private open space standards. This has been accepted by the Delegated
Officer in the Report of Handling which indicates that the site is big enough to
accommodate a modest dwelling. Again, if there is any concern over the size of
the dwellinghouse the size of the house and plot ratio could of course be
appropriately conditioned by the Review Body if it is of the opinion that the
proposal is acceptable in principle.

e Services: connection to electricity, telephone and wastewater i.e. drainage
schemes will be a factor — particularly if there is a limited capacity.

Response —

There is adequate connection to all services.

o Design: The scale, shape and proportion of the development should respect or
complement the adjacent buildings and the plot density and size. Colour,
materials and detailing are crucial elements to pick up from surrounding
properties to integrate a development within its context.

Response -

It is proposed to construct a single storey modest dwellinghouse on the site. This
given the size of the site as previously outlined would compliment the pattern of
adjacent buildings and plot densities. The exact design including finishing
materials would be finalised in any subsequent applications but cognisance would
be taken of the surrounding buildings and materials and the proposed house would
be designed and finished to compliment the overall streetscape. Again, if there is
any concern over aspects of the design or finishing materials suitable conditions
could be appended by the Review Body if it is of the opinion that the proposal is
acceptable in principle.

e Design of New Housing in Settlements

The location of houses within a settlement is the most critical factor. New
development must be compatible with, and consolidate, the existing




Page 24

Page 19 of 31Page

settlement. Unlike isolated and scattered rural development, the relationship
with neighbouring properties will be paramount, as issues such as overlooking
and loss of privacy may arise. Bullet points 1, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of section 3.1 can
also apply here

As a general principle all new proposals should be designed taking the
following into account:

o Location: new housing must reflect or recreate the traditional building pattern
or built form and be sympathetic to the setting landmarks, historical features or
views of the local landscape.

Response -

As previously outlined the proposed siting of the dwellinghouse reflects the overall
built form and established building patterns in the area.

e Layout: must reflect local character/patterns and be compatible with
neighbouring uses. Ideally the house should have a southerly aspect to
maximise energy efficiency.

Response -

Again as previously outlined the proposed siting of the dwellinghouse reflects the
overall built form and established building patterns in the area and is a compatible
residential use. It has a southerly aspect which could maximise energy efficiency.

e Access: should be designed to maximise vehicular and pedestrian safety and
not compromise the amenity of neighbouring properties.

Response —

The Area Manager Roads has no objection to the proposed access.

s Back-land Development

Back-land development can be defined as new development behind a row or
group of existing buildings. Access to such development is normally gained
via a separate road from that serving the existing buildings, although joint
accesses are sometimes possible.

Back-land development can provide additional housing within existing
residential areas and make good use of neglected and/or unused vacant land,
However, such development needs to take account of the settlement’s existing
built character and the area’s historical development. It requires to be designed
to maintain the privacy and amenity of the original property and allow for an
appropriate and safe vehicular and pedestrian access.

Response -




Page 25

Page 20 of 31Page

The proposal does not constitute back land development. Notwithstanding this the
proposed development as outlined reflects the development pattern of the area,
maintains the privacy of adjacent properties and has an adequate separate access.

¢ Overlooking

Privacy in the home is something that everyone has a right to expect, and in
order to protect this basic right, new development needs to be carefully sited
and designed. The use of windows that are taller than they are wide can greatly
reduce problems of overlooking, particulasly in built-up areas or where the
road or footpath is close to the house.

The following standards have been successfully applied by the Council for
many years and it is intended that their use will continue.

No main window of a habitable room (i.e. all rooms except bathrooms and
hallways) within a dwelling shall overlook (directly facing) the main windows
of habitable rooms in neighbouring dwellings at a distance of less than 18
metres. Plans submitted with planning applications will be required to show
the location of all adjoining properties and the exact position of their main
windows. A distance of 12 meters is required between habitable room
windows and gable ends or elevations with only non-habitable room windows.
These standards may be relaxed where the angle of view or the design (i.e. use
of frosted glass) of the windows allows privacy to be maintained. In some
cases a condition may be attached to a planning consent withdrawing
permitted development rights to insert new window openings.

Response -

Although the application is in principle the indicative plan submitted shows that a
modest dwellighouse can be positioned on the site to respect the above standards.
In this respect the submitted plan indicates that the distance from the rear boundary
to the existing villa is some 13m. and that the rear wall of the proposed
dwellinghouse would be located in excess of 18m. from the villa. The front of the
proposed dwellighouse would also be located over 18m. from the properties across
Princes Street East. Being located to maintain the existing building line along the
eastern part of Princes Street East there will be no unacceptable direct overlooking
from the property into adjacent dwellings or gardens. This point has been accepted
by the Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling which states - ‘It is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any unacceptable
overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into adjacent properties’
and - specifically in relation to the adjacent property to the east — ‘Being situated to
the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not considered that given suitable boundary
treatment there would be any unacceptable overlooking from a single storey
dwellinghouse on the site into this adjacent garden’

o Developments Affecting Daylight to Neighbouring Properties




Page 26

Page 21 of 31Page

E.

Householders can legitimately expect a reasonable amount of direct daylight
into all or at least some living room windows, and this should be protected as
far as possible in order to maintain reasonable levels of household amenity.

When considering a site for a new house, or an extension to an existing house,
applicants should ensure that the house will not significantly affect daylight
and direct sunlight to existing neighbouring properties. Applicants should refer
to published standards “Site Layout Planning For Sunlight and Daylight” BRE
1991.

Where a proposed development has a significant adverse affect on daylight
and direct sunlight to existing neighbouring properties planning permission
will be refused.

Response -

The proposed dwellinghouse would as previously indicated be located on the
existing building line along the eastern part of Princes Street East. Given this
location and the prevalent sun path it is possible ( subject to detailed design ) that
there could be a slight degree of shadow cast from the proposed single storey
dwellinghouse over the gardens to the east and west. This however would cover
possibly only a small part of these gardens at different times of the day and would
be minimal and within the acceptable parameters expected in a built up area. The
Delegated Officer has accepted that there would not be an unacceptable impact
from loss of daylight or sunlight to adjacent properties in the Report of Handling
which indicates that - ‘Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from a single storey dwellinghouse’.

Considering the above points the proposal as can be ascertained as being in
compliance with the Sustainable Siting and Design Principles contained in
Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan.

Argyll and Bute Council Design Guide

The Design Guide by its nature is more related to the detailed design of
developments rather than the consideration of developments in principle. It also
tends to concentrate more on the probable impact that developments could have on
the rural and varied scenic qualities of the countryside in Argyll and Bute.

It does however contain some guidelines which are applicable to urban situations
namely —

s Small scale housing development — The Design Guide indicates that -
“The site layout or siting of the building should be based on a considered
response to the development paitern of settlements and buildings in the
immediate area’.




Page 27

Page 22 of 31Page

Response -

As previously indicated the proposal has taken account of and is related to the
broad development pattern and siting of adjacent buildings in the area.

Plot size and overlooking - this section basically indicates that plot sizes
should be in accordance with the area and capable of sustaining a
dwellinghouse and that there should be no unacceptable overlooking of
adjacent properties from any new developments.

Response -

These points have been evaluated in this report and as indicated the plot size is
compatible with other developments in the area. It is of a sufficient size to
accommodate a modest dwellinghouse and will not result in any unacceptable
overlooking.

Massing, proportion and scale — this section is more related to the detailed
design of any development and indicates that the massing of a building on a
site, its proportion and scale should reflect the surrounding area.

Response —

Although an indicative footprint of the proposed dwellinghouse was submitted
it can be ascertained from this that the scale of the proposed dwellinghouse
would be compatible with the overall massing and proportions relating to other
buildings in the vicinity.

Character — again this is more related to detailed design and indicates that
new buildings should take account of and be sympathetic to the existing
character of surrounding buildings and the general built format.

Response -

If the Review Body consider that the proposal is acceptable in principle then
the design of any subsequent dwellinghouse will be discussed with the relevant
Planning Officer to ensure that the design is complimentary to the overall

character of this area.

Infrastructure and access — this section indicates that all development should
have adequate infrastructure and satisfactory access.

Response —

As tllustrated in this report the development can utilise the existing
infrastructure in the area and has satisfactory access.




Page 28

Page 23 of 31Page

e Sustainable siting / settlement patterns — this section indicates that
development should reflect the broad pattern of existing development in the
area in which it is situated.

Response -

As illustrated in this report the proposal takes cognisance of and reflects the
broad pattern of development in the area.

¢ Sustainable siting / prominence and visibility - this section indicates that
any development should where possible be integrated into the wider landscape
and should not create a highly visible element within this landscape.

Response -

As illustrated the proposal will be seen as an integral part of the townscape and
due to its siting and containment behind the existing boundary wall will not
constitute a visibly discordant feature in the townscape.

Basically the Council’s Design Guide requires that new development maintains
and enhances the overall qualities of an area by ensuring that it has regard to the
character and density of surrounding development and that development layout and
density be effectively integrated with the streetscape/townscape setting. In this
respect as illustrated the proposal is compliant with these objectives and as such is
in accordance with the broad guidance and objectives of the Design Guide.

5.0 Other material Considerations

1.

Objections
It is understood that four representations were received with regards to the
proposal.

The points raised and comments on these points are as follows —

a. The proposed house would overlook the garden ground of 91b East Princess
Street.

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — “This area is situated to the west of the proposed site and it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any unacceptable
overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this adjacent
garden’.

b. An extra house would mean more vehicles using the existing access.




Page 29

Page 24 of 31Page

Comment —

It is proposed to construct a new access which would not result in additional traffic
using the existing access. It is also noted from consultations on the proposal that
the Area Manager Roads has no objection to the proposal.

¢. The existing house on the site is a Victorian villa and the new building will not
be in keeping with and will detract from the Victorian style building.

Comment —

As expanded above the area is characterised by a wide mix of differing housing
styles and it is proposed that the new house will be of an architectural style that
would compliment the architectural elements of the existing villa and other
surrounding housing. -

d. An exira dwellinghouse wi]] create more noise in the vicinity during
construction and from the residents.

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — ‘Excessive noise from premises is not considered a material
planning consideration and can be monitored by other appropriate legislation’.

e. The proposed house will block light and sun from the back garden of 97 East
Princes Street.

Comment —

Again there is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that - ‘Being situated to the west of 97 Princes Street East it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from a single storey dwellinghouse’.

f. The proposed house will reduce privacy io the back garden of 97 Princess
Street East which is used extensively by the proprietor who has severe medical
problems.

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — ‘Being situated to the west of 97 Princes Street East it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any unacceptable
overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this adjacent
garden’.

g The proposed garage will block light and sun to the front garden of 97
Princess Street East.




Page 30

Page 25 of 31Page

Comment —

Again there 1s agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — ‘Being situated to the west of 97 Princes Street East it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from the proposed development’.

h. The proposed house will increase overlooking of adjacent properties.
Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — ‘It is not considered that given suitable boundary treatment there

would be any unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the
site into adjacent properties’.

i,  The proposed house will be overlooked by the tenement properties across
Princess Street East.

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that — ‘These properties are located some 18m. across Princes Street East
which complies with guidance on window to window distances’.

j. There will be a loss of established trees.

Comment —

As outlined in the landscape assessment the trees are of poor quality and their
removal would not adversely affect the overall townscape.

k. The bus stop will have to be moved to the front of 97 East Princess Street.
Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that - “There is adequate street frontage for the bus top to be relocated.
This is outwith normal planning functions and will be coordinated by the Area

Roads Manager and the appropriate bus operator’.

I There are enough houses on the site and there is no need for additional houses
in Helensburgh.

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that - “Sites in the area exhibit differing densities some of which are




]-—----------

Page 31

Page 26 of 31Page

compatible with the proposal and each site is considered on its own merit with
regards to compatibility with policies in the adopted Local Plan’.

m. The proposal will require a new access through the existing wall. The sight
lines at this access are poor and the formation of an access will mean the loss of
two parking spaces on the road.

Comment —

I is accepted there will be a new access through the existing wall. This wall is
however not protected and will only be partially affected and the new opening with
suitable gateposts will respect the traditional nature of the wall. The loss of on
street parking spaces due to this new access will not, given the relatively low level
of on street parking in the vicinity lead to unacceptable parking problems in the
vicinity. It should also be noted that the Area Roads Manager has no objection to
the proposal.

n. The proposal should be refused as it was in 1983 and 1987.
Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that - ‘The application is considered under current Local Plan Policies in
relation to the settlement pattern of the area’. The current Local Plan contains
many policies that in essence diverge from older plans and are more compliant and
up to date concerning pressures on modern communities.

0. Another property will place extra burdens on existing water and sewerage
Services.

Comment —

It 1s noted from the consultation replies that Scottish Water have no objections to
the proposal.

p. The site already has two flats and two houses on it and another house will
represent overdevelopment.

Comment —

As previously outlined in this report the area has a mixed density and the proposed
plot 1s compatible in density terms and in size with other developments in the area.
In these respects and others as previously outlined the proposal is compatible with
the overall development pattern of the area and would not represent unacceptable
overdevelopment,

q. The current proposal gives no indication of the height of the house and even a
single storey house would look directly into the living room and bedroom of
91c¢ East Princess Street.




. S N N W B P B B EE SN B BN S BN BN S W e e e

Page 32

Page 27 of 31Page

Comment —

There is agreement with the Delegated Officer who stated in the Report of
Handling that - ‘The application is for a development in principle and as such
there is no requirement to indicate the proposed height of the house. It is
considered however that the site is only suitable for a single storey house and a
condition is proposed to that effect’. As previously stated it is proposed to
construct a single storey dwellinghouse and the applicant would have no objection
to such a condition being attached to any subsequent planning approval.

The above comments illustrate that the objectors points can either be discounted or
addressed in any subsequent application and that consideration of their objections
should not outweigh the consideration of the application on its compliance with Local
Plan policies.

2. Previous Applications / Appeal

a.

As previously indicated in the history and the Report of Handling relating to
the application there have been two previous refusals for the erection of a
dwellinghouse on the site.

Planning Permission was refused in 1983 by Dumbarton District Council for
the erection of a dwellinghouse on the site { Ref — C7044 — Production No. 5 )

At that time in 1983 Dumbarton Council considered that the application should
be refused as — ‘If approved the development would increase the density of
dwellings on the site to an unacceptable level and would also establish a
second layer of residential development which would establish a precedent for
further equally undesirable development in similar locations’.

In 1986 planning Permission was refused by Dumbarton District Council for
the erection of a dwellinghouse on the site { Ref — C7658 )

This refusal was subsequently dismissed on appeal in 1987 ( Ref -
P/PPA/SH/97 — Production No. 6 )

At that time in 1986 Dumbarton Council considered that the application
should be refused as — ‘If approved, the development would constitute an
overdevelopment of the site and an unacceptable form of tandem development
which could establish a precedent for equally undesirable development in
similar locations’.

These decisions were based on the overall provisions of policies extant at the
time and principally those contained within the Dumbarton Council Local Plan
No.1 which has since been superseded by other Local Plans and the current
adopted Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009,

As illustrated in this report the proposed dwellinghouse would not increase the
overall density of the area to an unacceptable degree and would be within the
accepted density standards as existing throughout the area. Also, in this respect




Page 33

Page 28 of 31Page

as llustrated the site is accepted as being capable of accommodating a modest
dwellinghouse and as such when considering this with the density criteria the
proposal would not constitute overdevelopment of the site.

The current Local Plan contains no policies which specifically prohibit second
tier or tandem development. This is recognised by the Delegated offtcer who
states in the Report of Handling that — “The two previous applications were
refused on the basis that density would be increased to an unacceptable level
and would also establish a second layer of residential development which
would set an undesirable precedent. Current Local Plan policy is less
concerned with second tier development, subject to certain Caveats’.

The refusals tn 1983 and 1986 also mention the concept of precedence.
Precedent can be considered as a material planning consideration et it refers
to a somewhat restrictive circumstance in which a planning authority refuse
planning permission because to grant it would likely lead to a proliferation of
similar applications.

The mere fear of establishing 2 precedent or some general concern is not
sufficient grounds for refusal as some evidence must exist before reliance on
such grounds may be justified and there should be evidence in one form or
another for similar development in the area to rely on precedence.

Decision making should rely on consistency and the provisions of the
Development Plan and not on perceived precedent.

In practice each application should be solely considered on its own merits
when there is no evidence led to indicate that there is any tangible precedent
for similar developments in the area.

In the case of these previous refusals there was no tangible evidence led by the
Council that any other similar applications out with this site had been received
or were likely to be received or encouraged by these applications which would
cumulatively erode the overall density standards or character of the area..

It should of course be noted that to date no other applications in the area for
development outwith this site under review have been received by the Council.
Precedent however has not been used as a reason for refusal in the current
application under review.

The proposal which was appealed in 1987 ( Ref — P/PPA/SH/97 — Production
No. 6) covered a slightly different site from the current site under review as
although basically in the same position it extended up to the common entrance
driveway to the west ( a frontage of some 26m. by a depth of some 20m. —
some 520 sq. m. ) and as such included what is now amenity ground associated
with the upper flat in 91a, Princes Street East.

In his decision letter on the appeal the reporter indicated that — * I consider the
determining issues to be whether the back garden of the proposed bungalow
would be large enough to accommodate the activities normally carried out in a
back garden and if not what effect the proposal would be likely to have on the
appearance and character of its surroundings’,




m 2N N N A N BN BN B BN IS BN BN BN B DS DS B W R e

Page 34

Page 29 of 31Page

He duly considered that as the proposal would result in a relatively small back
garden it would be to the detriment of the appearance and character of its
surroundings and that this was the determining issue and the appeal was
dismissed.

1. The current adopted Argyll and Bute Local plan contains standards for
amenity garden areas for housing and indicates that - “all development should
have some private open space (ideally a minimum of 100 sq m), semi-
detached/ detached houses (and any extensions) should only occupy a
maximum of 33% of their site, although this may rise to around 45% for
terrace and courtyard developments’,

m. As previously outlined under the open space /density considerations it is
proposed that the dwellinghouse would not occupy more than 25% of the site
with a resultant garden area of some 340 sq. m. This therefore would be
consistent with the current policies / standards of the Local Plan.

n.  The reporter also was of the opinion that -

o  The resulting density in the area resulting from the construction of a
dwellinghouse would not be unacceptably high.

»  That owners of other properties in the area do not have an inherent right of
view.

o  That if the proposed house which was planned to face west was positioned
to the south east corner of the site it would not intrude to a material extent
into the view of the properties to the north of the site.

Note — As previously indicated it is considered that the proposed
dwellinghouse would not intrude to an unacceptable degree into
the views of these properties from the south along Princes Street
East.

e The distances between the existing properties on the site and the proposed
dwelhnghouse would be greater than is found on many housing estates.

e  The proposal would increase the risk of damage to the irees fronting the
site and that this would be regrettable as these trees are a pleasing feature
of the street scene.

Note — As previously outlined these trees are not protected and since the
appeal decision the condition of the trees has substantially
deteriorated to the extent that they now have little value in the
streetscape. This view as has been previously stated is shared by
the Delegated Officer in the Report of Handling on the application,

0. In essence the Reporter did not totally dismiss the concept of a dwellinghouse
on the site but considered the determining issue to be the resultant size of the




Page 35

Page 30 of 31Page

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

associated garden which in the application under review conforms with the
standards contained within the current adopted Local Plan,

p. These previous refusals and the appeal decision are material considerations.
They should not however be considered as overriding material considerations
as they were based on dated standards and policies which have been largely
superseded by the standards and overall provisions of the 2009 Argyll and
Bute Local Plan. As such their consideration should not outweigh the due
consideration given to the policies and provisions of the current Development
Plan.

Caonclusion

From the above points and analysis it is ascertained that the proposal is consistent with
the provisions of Policy STRAT 1 of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan and Policies
LP ENV 1, LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19, LP TRAN 6 and Appendix A of the Argyll and
Bute Local Plan and the Council’s Design Guide,

The Planning Act indicates that - where in making any determination under that
planning act regard is to be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be

made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

If it is considered that the proposal complies with the Development Plan and there are
no adverse material considerations then planning consent should be granted.

As outlined above this proposal satisfies the overall provisions of the relevant policies
of the Development Plan.

As the proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan and there

are no adverse material considerations it is respectfully submitted that the proposal for
the erection of a dwellinghouse { in principle) should be granted planning consent.

List of Productions

Production 1 — Planning Application Form

Production 2 — Report of Handling — Application — 11/00518/PPP
Production 3 — Refusal Notice — Application — 11/00518/PPP
Production 4 - Refused Plans — Application — 11/00518/PPP

Production 5 — Copy of Report and Refusal Notice by Dumbarton District Council on
Appilication C. 7044 - 1983

Production 6 — Copy of Appeal Decision including Dumbarton District Council’s case
for refusal of Application C.7658 — Appeal Ref. - P/PPA/SH/97 -
1987




Page 36

Page 31 of 31Page




[ PintForm |

Page SPRopycTionN |

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1987
The Town and Counlry Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Reguiations 2008
Please refer to the accompanying Guidance Notes when completing this application
PLEASE NOTE IT IS FASTER AND SIMPLER TO SUBMIT PLANNING APPLICATIONS
ELECTRONICALLY VIA https:/leplanning.scotland.gov

1. Applicant’s Detalls 2. Agent’s Details (if any)

Tide g l:efNo. ,_

Forename orename AAJ.

Sumaime | PECPLES Sumame MA-CLELY

Company Norme company Name [ 7 j L] ACLEZ D)
Building to;ﬂ:m Slg Buiiding l;l-lo::;me C‘Hmﬁ’z AXF T
. | e

Adaressline? | DPINCED 5T ERSG Adwessiine2 [ peTzay DRIVE
TowniCay HELEWAHBLESH 1 T HELEWLAUREH] -
Pastcode CBY4 TDQR Postcode CFAE0A

Telephone Telephone 27 L47

Mobile Mobile

Fax Fax

E'“a*‘l Email Iian- MM-QMM@W’-CW X

3. PMIMMNLWMWWMMM

Yjq PeiNCE?, ST1RET ERST

NB. kumwmaﬁmmmmmwmehmﬁmdmgh@mmwm
documentation. '

4. Type of Application

Planning
Planning

Further Application™
App!icaﬁonfnrAppMnfMattersSpedﬁalinCondiﬁm‘
Application for Mineral Works™

NB. A ‘further application' may be e.g. development
Wamnewddpmmnmrﬁssionoranmﬁﬁmﬁm.
*Plaasepawidaamﬁermwnmﬁerofﬂ\epmappmmn‘ and date when pamission was granted:

Referance No:

Matisﬁampl‘mﬁonfoﬂPlamandmem

Permissi
Permisgion in Principle

DDDEI\E]

mmmwmmumaammmm
variation or removal of a planning condition. '




Page 38

~plaase note that if you are applying for planning permission for mineral works your planning authority may have a
separate form or require additional information.

6. Description of the Proposal

Please describe the proposal including any change of use:
ELECTICN C©F DUWEUINEG HOLSE (N PAET CF TUE
EAZDEN OF Sla PEINTES STRCET ERST

Is this & termporary permission? Yes[] No [~

If yes, please state how long permission is required for and why:

Have the works already been started or completed? Yes[] NolA™

If yes, please state date of completion, or if not completed, the start date:

Date started: r J Date completed: r

If yes, please explain why work has already taken place in advance of making this appication

6. Pra-Application Discugsion

Have you received any advice from the planning authority in reiation to this proposal? Yes D‘ﬁo [
If yes, please provide details about tha advice below:

In what format was the advice given? Meeting Il Telephone call [ Letter [ Email [
Have you agreed or are you discussing a Processing Agreement with the planning authority? Yes [1No []

Please provide a description of the advice you were given and who you received the advice from:
Nome: G FILDEEIZS | ate: MA@ 2 ti | Retho: | |

SUEVvIT APPCLICATION

7. Site Area

Please state the site area in either hectares or square metres:

Hectares (ha): Square Metre (sq.m.) A M. sy
|




. Page 39

8. Existing Use

Please descripe the cument or most recent use:

GARIEN

9. Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? Yes [\ No [}

i yos, please show in your drawings the position of any existing, alfered or new access and explain the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on thess.

Are you proposing any changes to public paths, public rights of way or ves CINo (A
affecting any public rights of access?

If yes, please show on your drawings the position of any affecied areas and explain the changes you propose to
make, including arrangements for continuing or altemative pubfic access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently I = ‘

exist on the application site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you F,

propose on the site? (i.e. the total number of existing spaces plus any £ J
new spaces)

Piaase show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and spedily if these are to be
allocated for particular types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, eic.)

40. Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposals require new or aitered water supply _ Yes T No []
or drainage arangements?

Are you proposing to connect fo the public drainage network {e.g. to an existing sewer?)
Yes, connecting to a public drainage network

No, proposing to make private drainage arrangements
Not applicable ~ only arangement for water supply required

sw]

What private arrangements are you proposing for the newfaltered septic tank?

Discharge to land via scakaway
Discharge to watercourse(s) (including partial soakaway)
Discharge to coastal waters

a0

Please show more details on your plans and suppotting information

What private afrangements are you proposing?

Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewer treatment plants, or passive |
sewage treatment such as a reed bad)

Giher private drainage arrangement (such as a chemical toilets or composting foilets) 3
Plaase show more delails on your plans and supporting information.

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface waler? Yes [} No [

3




R N

‘ Page 40

Note.- Please inciude details of SUDS arrangements on your plans
Ase you proposing fo connect to the public water supply network? Yes ﬂ No []

if no, using & private waler supply, pi‘easeshawonplansﬂlewppfyandaﬂwo:ksnaededtopmvidait{onoroff
site) .

11. Assessment of Flood Risk

15 the site within an area of known risk of flooding? Yes[] No M

I the site is within an area of known risk of Roodling you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your
application can be defermined. You may wish fo contact your planning authority or SEPA for advice on what
information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the fiood risk elsewhare? Yes ] No  DortKnow [J

If yes, briefly describe how the risk of flooding might be increased elsewhere.

12. Trees

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? Yes E’(No |

If yes, please show on drawings any trees (including known protected trees) and their canopy spread as lhey relate
to the proposed site and indicate if any are to be cut back of felled. OLE HEAVILN PLILARDET TREES
BNE T BE REILVEL?

13. Waste Storage and Collection

Do the pians incorporate areas to store and aid the collection Yes G No {1
of waste? {including recydling)

i yes, please provide details and illustrate on plans.
If no, please provide delails as to why no provision for refusedrecycling storage Is being made;

NHEE By AToi2e CN PCAKN]

44. Resldential Units Including Conversion

Does your proposal include new or additional houses andfor fiats? Yes[] Noi}

if yes how many units do you propose in totat? I— / J

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plan. Additional information may be provided in a
supporting statement.




Page 41

15, For all types of non housing development — new floorspace proposed

Does you proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? Yes [} NojA”
if yes, please provide delails balow:
Use type: F [

If you are extending a building, please provide
details of existing gross floorspace (sq.m). I

Proposed gross fioorspace (8q.m.): | |

Please provide delails of internal foorspace(sq.m)

Net trading space: l

Non-trading space: !

Tota) net flioorspace:
" I i

16. Schedule 3 Development

Does the praposal involve a ctass of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country Planning
{Development Management Procedure) (Scotiand) Regulations 20087

Yes [] No [ Don't Know []
H yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in your area. Your planning

authority will do this on your behalf but may charge a fes. Please contact your planning authority for advice on
planning fees.

17. Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Intarest

Asa you { the appiicant / the applicant’s spouse or pariner, a member of staff within the planning servige of an
elected member of the planning authority? Yes [ 1 No

Or, are you / the applicant / the applicant’s spouse or partner a close relative of a member of staff in the ptanning
setvice of elected member of the pianning authority? Yes{ ] No

K you have answered yes please provide details:

DECLARATION

I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission The accompanying plans/drawings
and additional information are provided as part of this application.

-hassmplissn¥/agent hereby ceriify that the attached Land Ownership Certificate has been completed ['fa/

|-temEeent /agent hereby certify that requisite notice has been given to other land owners and /or aguﬁcw
tenants ves ] No [ N/A

Name: | /AN MACLELD pate: | 257/ 7, [200i
CHARTEWED AECHITECT S

Any personat data that you hav n,asked to provide on this form will be held and processed in accordance with

the requirements of the 1988 Data Protection Act.




R

o AT AL BT e PR

hom |7 Page 42

[}

LAND OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATES

Town and Country Ptanning (Scotland) Act 1997

Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Pianning (Deveiopment Management Procadure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008

CERTIFICATE A, B, C OR CERTIFICATE D
MUST BE COMPLETED BY ALL APPLICANTS

CERTIFICATE A
Certificate A is for use where the applicant is the only owner of the land to which the application
relates and none of the tand is agricuttural tand,

i hereby certify that - v

{1) No person other than-mysetf AFPPUGANT  was owner of any pant of the land to
whidwmeapplicaﬁonralahasatthebagmmngofﬂrapeﬁodofﬁdaysendingwiﬂ'tthe

date of tha epplication. .
{2) None of the iand to which the application relales constitutes or forms part of

agriculturs
T = =

Onbehalfof. | ME. W. PEOPLES
Date: L 24z/z011.

*

-

rd

- CERTIFICATE B v 2
Certificate B Is for usa where the applicant is not the owner or sale owner offhe land 1o which the
application _relates andior where the land is agricultural land and whera g!mnersfagricuuuml tenants

have been identified. /,/

{ hereby certify that - - e
(1} thave served notice on every W{ othar than myself who,

at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending Wi the date of the application was

owner of any part of the land to which the applicatich relates. These persons are:

P
Z
Date of Service of
Name A;l(maa Notice

or

(3) The ndorpartofthehmmmtmmaapplieaﬁonwlatosconsﬁmsorfompanof

lural land and | have served notice on every person other D
an myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with
the date of the application was an agriculturai tenant. These pefsons are:




Pa

43
ﬁODUQIwN pr

Argyll and Bute Council
Development & Regulatory Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure)
{Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle

Reference No: 11/00518/PPP
Planning Hierarchy: Local Application
Applicant:  Mr Peoples

Propasal: Site for the erection of a dwellinghouse (In principle)

Site Address: Garden Ground of 91A Princes Street East, Helensburgh G84 7DQ

DECISION ROUTE

(i) Sect 43 {A) of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1887

{A) THE APPLICATION
()] Develapment Requiring Express Planning Permission
- Erection of dwellinghouse and formation of access {In principle)
{ii) - Other specified operations

- Connection to public water and sewerage

(B) RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be refused for the reasons stated overleaf.

(C) HISTORY: C 7044 —Erection of dwelling {outline) (Refused 31/8/1983)
C 7568 — Erection of dwelling (outline) (Refused 00/0/1887 and subsequent
appeal dismissed)

(D) CONSULTATIONS: Scottish Water — letter dated 08.04.2011 — no objections
Area Manager Roads — memo dated 12.04.2011 — no objections
subject to conditions

{E)  PUBLICITY: None

(F) REPRESENTATIONS: Four representations were received from




Page 44

Mrs. Maud Stevens 87, East Princess Street (letter received — 21 .4.2011)
Mrs Anne Begg 91, East Princess Street (letter dated - 27.04.2011)

Mr and Mrs J. Hall, @1c, East Princess Street (letter dated - 18.04.2011)
Jamie Everden — no address given (email - 18.04.2011)

The points raised and comments are as follows -

1.

10.

1.

12,

The proposed hotuse would overlook the garden ground of 9tb East Princess
Street.

Comment — This area is situated to the west of the proposed site and it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any
unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this
adjacent garden.

An extra house would mean more vehicles using the existing access.
Comment -~ The Area Manager Roads has no objection to the proposal.

The existing house on the site is a Victorian villa and the new building will not be in
keeping with and will detract from the Victorian style building.
Comment — See assessment

An exira dwellinghouse will create mare noise in the vicinity during construction
and from the residents. :

Comment — Excessive noise from premises is not considered a material planning
consideration and can be monitored by other appropriate leglislation.

The proposed house will block light and sun from the back garden of 97 East
Princess Sireet.

Comment — Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Sireet it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from a single starey dwellinghouse.

The proposed house will reduce privacy to the back garden of 97 East Princess
Street which is used extensively by the proprietor who has severe medical
problems.

Comment - Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any
unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this
adjacent garden,

The proposed garage will block light and sun to the front garden of 97 East
Princess Street

Comment - Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from the proposed development.

The proposed house will increase overlocking of adjacent praperties.

Comment - It is not considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would
be any unacceptable overlooking from 2 single storey dwellinghouse on the site
into adjacent properties.

The propased house will be overlooked by the tenement properties across East
Princess Street.

Comment — These properties are located some 18m. across Princes Street East
which complies with guidance on window to window distances.

There will be a loss of established trees.
Comment — See my assessment,

The bus stop will have to be moved to the front of 97 East Princess Strget.



13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 45

Comment ~ There is adequate street frontage for the bus top to be relocated. This
is outwith normal planning functions and will be coordinated by the Area Roads
Manager and the appropriate bus operator.

There are enough houses on the site and there is no need for additional houses in
Helensburgh.

Comment — Sites in the area exhibit differing densities some of which are
compatible with the proposal and each site is considered on its own merit with
regards to compatibility with policies in the adopted Local Plan.

The proposal will require a new access through the existing wall. The sight lines at
this access are poar and the formation of an access will mean the loss of two
parking spaces on the road.

Comment — The Area Roads Manager has no objection to the proposal.

The praposal should be refused as it was in 1983 and 1987.
Comment — The application is considered under current Local Plan Policies in
relation to the settlement pattern of the area.

Ancther property will place extra burdens on existing water and sewerage services.
Comment — Scottish Water have no objections to the proposal.

The site already has two flats and two houses on it and another house will
represent overdevelopment.
Comment — See assessment.

The current proposal gives no indication of the height of the house and even a
single storey house would look directly into the living room and bedroom of 91¢
east Princess Street.

Comment — The application is for a development in principle and as such there is
no requirement to indicate the proposed height of the house, it is considered
however that the site is only suitable for a single storey house and an condition is
proposed to that effect.




Page 46

{G}] SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:
i) Environmental Statement: N
(i) An appropriate assessment under the COnsewétion {Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: N
(iii) A design or design/access statement: N
(iv) A report on the impact of the proposed development eg. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: N
Summary of main issues raised by each assessmentireport
N/A
{H} PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
(i) Is a Section 75 agreement required: N
{n g;s S Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or
{9}  Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations

over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessament of the application

)

(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.

‘Arayll a ruciure Plan’ 2002

STRAT DC 1 — Develapment within the Settlements

‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009

LP ENV 1 — Impact on the General Environment

LP ENV 19 - Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP HOU 1 — General Housing Development

LP TRAN & - Vehicle Parking Provision

Appendix A — Sustainable Siting and Design Principles
Appendix C — Access and Parking Standards

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of GCircular
472009,

Argyll & Bute Sustainable Design Guidance {2006)




Page 47

(K) Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment: N

{L) Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
{PAC): N .

(M} Has a sustainability check list been submitted: N

(N}  Does the Council have an interest in the site: N

{0} Requirement for a hearing {PAN41 or other): N

(P) Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations

Planning permission is sought in for the erection of a dwellinghouse and associated
garage and access. The site is located within the front garden of 91a Princes Street East
with a new access being formed onto Princes Street East. The site measures some 540
sgq.m. Two previous applications for residential development have been refused in 1883
and 1987 respectively. The latter application was subsequently appealed and the appeal
dismissed.

Plot sizes in the vicinity vary and are generally larger than the proposed piot athough
there are a few of comparable or smaller size notably the two plots to the north of the
site adjacent to the railway. The proposed dwellinghouse and garage although indicative
measure some 138 sq.m. floor area. This represents some 25% of the plot. The useable
private garden area would be some 340 sq.m. The proposed plot at the nearest paoint
would be located some 13m. from the existing housing to the rear. The pattern of
development in Princes Street East is varied with some buildings being constructed in
the area of ground fronting the street with other buildings occupying the rear areas.
immediately to the west of the site there are a number of large vilias set to the back of
the plots with ancillary development such as garages to the front.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an cpen character and
value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its
relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the
existing villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and
would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form of developrnent. Consequently,
the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the
principle elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and undermine the
remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant,
and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be
contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan and the Council’s Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density
of surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively
integrated with the streetscape/townscape setting.

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states that “Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the




Page 48

development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.” Section 37 (2) of the Town and Country
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 further states that “In dealing with such an application the
authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material
to the application, and to any other material considerations.”

The two previous refusals on this site and the appeal decision are the key material
considerations in this case. The two previous applications were refused on the basis that
density would be increased to an unacceptable level and would also establish a second
layer of residential development which would set an undesirable precedent, Current
Locat Plan policy is less concerned with second tier development, subject to certain
caveats. Equally, the Reporter in the appeal decision was less concerned with the
resultant density created by the previous proposal. His concern was whether the back
garden of the proposed bungalow would be large enough to accommodate the activities
normally carried out in a back garden, and if not what effect the proposal would be likely
to have on the appearance and character of the area.

The conclusion was that the prapasal would be to the detriment of the appearance and
character of the area. The Reporter was also concerned about the impact of the
proposal on existing trees on site. This is still an issue with the current application as
three mature trees could be compromised by the proposed house and access, Whilst the
trees have value and the Council has a duty to protect good specimens | am of the view
that their value is limited.

In conelusion, the site is within the settlement boundary, is not within a Conservation
Area and is big enough to accommodate a modest dwelling. However, overall { consider
that the existing unlisted villa and its remaining curtilage still has streetscape value which
would be lost if the development goes ahead. In policy terms it cannot be supported as it
would nat maintain or enhance the character of the area. In terms of material
considerations the previous site history is crucial. it adds weight to the policy refusal and
it is not considered that there has been a material change in circumstances that would
merit approval.

Q)

Is the proposal cansistent with the Development Plan: Y

(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle should
be granted

The propesed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
uniisted villa. The curiilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curfilage still have an open character
and value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by
virtue of its relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its
location in front of the existing villa would erode the remaining open character of
this existing property and would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form
of development, Consequently, the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection
of a dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing traditional property would
erode and undermine the remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually
intrusive, visually discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the
area. As such it would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of
the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and the Council's Design Guide which require that new
development maintains and enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard
to the character and density of surrounding development and that development layout
and density be effectively integrated with the streetscapeftownscape setting.




Page 49

(5) Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan

N/A

{m Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: N

Author of Report: Howard Young Date: 19/M0/2011
Reviewing Officer: Date:

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services



Page 50

REASONS FOR REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 11/00518/PPP

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but unlisted
villa. The curtifage has previously been compromised by development either side of the existing
villa but the property and its curtitage stil have an open character and value in terms of the
immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its relationship with the street
frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa would erode the
remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location be a dominant and
obtrusive form of development. Consequently, the further sub-division of the curtilage and the
erection of a dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing traditional property would
erode and undermine the remaining value it has in the streetscape, wouid be visually intrusive,
visually discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it
would be contrary to Palicies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute
Local Plan and the Council’'s Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density of
surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively integrated with
the streetscape/townscape setting.

NOTES TO APPLICANT

1. For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details
specified on the application form dated 25 March 2011 and the refused drawing reference
number 24,



Page 51

APPENDIX TO DECISION APPROVAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 11/00518/PPP

(A)  Has the application required an abligation under Section 75 of the Town and
Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)?
N

(B)  Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms
of Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 18397 (as
amended) to the initial submitted plans during its processing?
N

(C) The reason why planning permission has been refused.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and
value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its
relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its focation in front of the
existing villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and
would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form of development. Consequently,
the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the
principle elevation of this existing traditionat property would erode and undermine the
remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant,
and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be
contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 18 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan and the Council's Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density
of surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively
integrated with the streetscapeftownscape setting.




Page 52 Y
PRopucTIioN 3

. Argyll

wBute

Development and Infrastructure Services .
Director. Sandy Mactaggart COU NCIL

Argyll and Bute Council
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid

Blairvadach Shandon Helensburgh G84 8ND
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 {AS AMENDED)

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE
REFERENCE NUMBER: 11/00518/PPP

Mr Peoples

lan MacLeod Chartered Architect
2 Kidston Drive

Helensburgh

G84 8QA

| refer to your application dated 30th March 2011 for planning permission in principle under the
above mentioned Act and Regulations in respect of the following development:

Site for the erection of dwellinghouse at Garden Ground Of 91A Princes Street East
Helensburgh Argyll And Bute G384 7DQ

Argyll and Bute Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act and
Regulations hereby refuse planning permission in principle for the above development for the
reason{s) contained in the attached appendix.

Dated: 21 October 2011

a,OW.d.Orer..

Angus J. Gilmour
Head of Planning and Regulatory Services




Page 53

REASONS FOR REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 11/00518/PPP

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but unlisted villa,
The curtilage has previously been compromised hy development either side of the existing villa but
the property and its curtilage stifl have an open character and value in terms of the immediate
streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its relationship with the street frontage to
East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa would erode the remaining open
character of this existing property and would by its location be a dominant and abtrusive form of
development. Consequently, the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a
dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and
undermine the remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually
discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be
contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and
the Council's Design Guide which require that new development maintains and enhances the
residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density of surrounding
development and that development layout and density be effectively integrated with the
streetscapeftownscape setting.

NOTES TO APPLICANT
1. For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details

specified on the application form dated 25 March 2011 and the refused drawing reference
number 2A,

Mo&

%

0514 2
»
d

7s) N

B Q“-
Ysan®




Page 54

APPENDIX TO DECISION APPROVAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 11/00518/PPP

A) Has the application required an obligation under Section 75 of the Town and
Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)?

B) Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms of
Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 {as amended)
to the initial submitted plans during its processing?

N

C) The reason why planning permission has been refused.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either side of
the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and value in
terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its relationship
with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa
would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location
be a dominant and obfrusive form of development. Consequently, the futher sub-division of
the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing
traditional property would erode and undermine the remaining value it has in the
streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant, and would not maintain or
enhance the character of the area. As such it would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP
ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and the Council's Design Guide
which require that new development maintains and enhances the residential area by
ensuring that it has regard to the character and density of surrounding development and
that development layout and density be effectively integrated with the
streetscapeftownscape setting.




’ VY] e ’
<N I I cvr s Hang SNETaH
. ®iQ HOTAYD ON —Fm‘q_vm ™| le.(m lﬁm.m.mhbm A.Umuzg*.. U._A\W

et | QODi| ams | RSN MAN QRS0 SF O] BN
................. \.:;.:..-....\.d,mm\..:.: i

......................................

: EE) U INOSUD[D LETXE| i

”—OOH: 21 . ,...i.e.?.a
raaay od“udwpwﬁotm:u AOTTOVIANYY | N30 6T e o i egygg ™
TR s | s

& o NOIGIATA H T v o . ..c:_.“.vw.
a ~ L | , Jisgea
\// /N i S ﬁ_zﬁ AGIANINY \ |

A R p At At e e 4 PIYR | v
Freneiriaon T S

eanc?) sing pue 4

e Al Ao

ABrg

/ 4 1 ¥
ST SUS ver Ao B IIEOT GETN RS SNIG Rk g
. 4 DN DI 3 AvER

-~ V...\
- S feer e el 2 idd N Ak o MEadEve B

A e GG 42 IMEd 1903 T

oy Ll -~ : . eg gl el
o e ! S
A Ao el i Br Bk D -~ I 4 e > =
s = < ; _ VLT WD AHNG YTV
sy ~3 HeB0l = WG »WZ) 0N T
MOV BLIG MNOLINDIMAdY |

¢ d.mﬂ.w.-.oo_ﬁ..-”cz ot 1
SyAnv U8

ALISOHLNY ONINNY 1D Ag pEsngay
TONNOD 3LNG aNY TIADHY

LaN MO 0T




TV e

PRopucTion 5

FOAWE ANDY COUNTRY PLANNING (SOUFLANDY AU, 1247
POWHN AND COUNTRY FLARNNING (CHNEIAL BEVELOPMENT;
(SCOITARDY ORDEH, HIGT

DUAMBARTON BISYRICTY COlRURL

fii §

TRy, he Fhndiee
4ol Brorg iy -

Li

, g

4.

=¥

\."}' 105
ey i Ji 4
- Al LA




- &g

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT T Forin 10‘
e e e et e e e e e ————_ A P R e o R RN TS R PR R
Y G.7044 Fep Paid u4°00 .................... iIO.S. No. 336(’302’5{822)
Article 7(%) Expiry . 25e083s. ]'lDeIegated DALe ..ocicrvreeeransns
Acknowledged ... X7 e5a83e. e COMITIEE: ooveveeennn. et
BS, ke Ttem NO. e
R e AR
K. Waride, AGENT o lachlan, Stanton & Cose
¢/o Heolachlan, Stanton & Coeg 72 Colquhoun Square,
22 Colgquhonn Square, - Halensburgh.
. . Hﬁlemw!-gh. . . e e e e mm———————— e = e
SITE N )
Aveland, . Type of Applica;;on
61 Eaet Frinces Street, Cutline
Trelesmhur e e e e = e e e
e  Eroposal Fractisn of one éwellinghoves.
; Fler-g
_______________________ e o e e P o R £
Natice cation : Expiry Date | Newspaper | )
_ Notice | Publication | Expiry Date : e | Dp. Policy/Proposal  Remidertial
Sect. 23 : i
[ - - e —; Listed Building
Sect, 26/L.3. |
e i - - Coniserviation Area

Tree Freservation Orde:

NID. | |
Objections Received 1 Previous Appl!éétion

DETAILS OF “DEVELOP N'I‘ .Eﬁrects.'on' of cfwélli.ngham in the fyont gar&u;_gmunﬁ' oﬁ
existing villa., Permission has already beon grarted for a dwellinghovse on the eanl
of the vills and an application has clso veen submitted for a dwellinghouss on the

vest oide (C.7043) .
Site Area - | Denslty

Recommendation/Reasons for Refugal/Attached Conditions
Tafun ent £ e foll rearons

1, If approved the development wonld {norease the dennity of cwollinge on the wsite tv an
_unpagepetable level and would also egtablith n nsccnd layer of residentis) fuvelecpuent
oo WbLoh wmid-esteblink; 8 precedont for fopther eguelly undesirable develeptent in
ginilar locations., : o o .
B LT S s A S AR

~"There iz already & new dwellinphousne wndar - conntruction: within the: grounds. bt the
sare vills, and I have reconmended approval of ansiher duelling within the grotpte un
the went eide. An addfifonal ewelling would introduce a ponrth “dweliig into dn ares
neasuring leap than § of ax aors, which 1 feel 4E an. overdevelopeent  of-the wiie, . Tie.
proposal i alse for the front gerden of tho exiating villa and would thenefors gnbrodnoe
s tandem development which Y-feel in inappropriate and do¥ribental '%c"'ﬂi#"&mﬁi’is' af -

the other dwellings ¢n the site and to adjscent propeetides oot I

1 would therefore rocormend thot vorsent be vetused for the ressotd fiven ghove.

ot

.......... e

\S44) Tirestor of Blanning & Developuent




Page 58 6
PRobucTIioN

Application No o, 7658

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCO‘I‘I.AND)-ACI'S, 1947-1984
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAIL DEVELOPMENT)
(SCOTLAND) ORDER, 1981

To Magsrs, Ferrier & Cleverly, per
Colin Robertson Graham and Partners,
13 Colquhoun Street,

Helensburgh, '

In pursuance of their powers under the above-ment ioned Acts ang
Order, the Digty ict Council hereby REFUSE TO PERMIT

Erection of detached bungalow {Ouztlina)
91 East Princes Street,

Helensburgh.

in accordance with the application, dated 06/02/85 and relative plans
submitted to the Council, for the following reasongs-

1. 1€ epproved, the develomment would constitute an over develooment of
the site and an unacceptable form of tandem development which could
éstablish a precedent for furthzrequally undesirable development in similar
locations.

Dated this *eeerseseen 30thea. ., .., dayj%f,_%....Apzil,........... 1986

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT, g T e S e
69 GLASGOW ROAD, : Thodie, el P
D[E\BARION. --ooc..--:.-.-.-oa_-a.-o---":n{-"?\}

"-;_l)_irgbtor of Planning & Development




Page 59

;, (125,

@ - DUMBARTON DISTRICT COUﬂCi\L“' S

VAP IOROF ADMINS TR A TION AN LEGAL RERVICEY " .
5 5 i CROSSLET HQUSE,
LNS MackEwa Nowa g ARGYLL AVENUE,
; DUMBARTON G82 3NS
et Telephone 65100
. Your Relorence C * 76@ Ve Bivforen o 31 1 5 SK .'MP I belephaping or ctting please. ash MiSS S' Kﬁrr 'Eh{t 21 5 .

27th August, 1937

Jameg M. Webstear,
Director of Planning and Development

F.A.0. Mr. K. Neeson

Dear 8ir,

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act, 1972
Appeal: 91 East Princes Street, Helensburgh

I refer to the above Appeal and now enclose for your information a Copy
of the Inquiry Reporters decision letter. :

Yours faithfully,

) ,’ Tt
\1‘ Director of Administra X , \ci{?
and Legal Services, . 2 Ahb e el
i Vit
! g L}""T ¥ :
t b“;‘a\\.*w’g:%i’-‘ \*‘i’“}"‘% “““““““ )
Vo e
} :_:ﬂ“vw“ﬂ




Page 60

Scottish Office Inquiry Reporters T 16 Waterloo Place
Ediiburgh £11 30N
) BZ&E‘-'Q
Tleptone G31 556 SreT
™ REPS
Htarnative et
f -
. “ S48
J 5 Trail Esq MSe FPRICS MRTPI - "”““-i ;
Chartered Surveyor - '
Chartered Town Planner . Your mf(/ ) '7658 .
51 Castiehill Drive . 87/22 \
Newtor Mearng Our rat ——
GLASGOW B/PPA[SH/9YT
G77 5LB Date
- _.J 2¢>August 1987
Dews Sip

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1972:  SECTION 33 AND
SCHEDULE 7

APPEAL BY MR R FERRIER AND MR J L CLEVERLY: BUNGALOW AT 91 EAST
PRINCES STREET, HELENSRURGH

1. I refer to your clients' appeal, which I have been appointed to determine,
against the refusal of outline planning permission by Dumbarton Distriet Council
to build a one storied detached bungalow at g1 East Princes Street, Helensburgh.
I held a public inquiry, which included inspections of the appeal site and its
Surroundings, into this mattep on 24 and 25 June 1987,

2. The original curtilage of house No 81, a substantial 2 storied detached
Victorian dwellinghouse known also as Aveland House, iz within the built up ares
of Helensburgh, about 500m to the east of its town centre, It has a frontage of

some 39m back from the front boundary of the site. Relatively new bungalows,
2 In number, have been built on eithep side of, and roughly in line with, the
original house. Access is provided by a drive which enters the site near jtg
south west corner, thence proceeding up the west side of the site before turning
eastwards to pass in front of each of the 4 Propertiess, A 13} storied house, with
access directly onto Eagt Princes Street, has been built in the south east corner
of the original curtilage, The appeal site is situated in front of the original
house, between the 13 storied house to the east and the shared drive to the
west. It has g frontage of about 98m onto East Princes Streat ang is about 24m
deep.  Access to it would be off the shared drive.

3. The reason for the refusal of planning permission wag "if approved, the
development would constitute ap overdevelopment of the site and an unacceptable
form of tandem development which could establish g Drecedent fop equally
urndesirahle development in similar locations™,

larger than the sites of any of the other 5 houses built on the original curtilage,
and indeed than plots on most modern housing developments, The appeal
proposal conformed with policy H14 of the Dumbarten District Loocal Plan 2, Trees
retained along the eagt and south boundaries of the appeal site, and the wall

Al1000224.077 1,




Page 61

J 8 Traill Bsg e P/PPA/SH/OT i pAugust 1887

cf the original curtilage, its relationship with that house would be similap to that
between the house in the south east corner of the original curtilage and the
original house, In any case the north west bungalow faced down the dpive
towards the Firth of Clyde. Its occupant had no right to expect her views over
the appeal site to be preserved, The proposal would not constitute tandem
development as the bungalow could be orientated to face westwards, The drive
n{(()!uld be comparable with a road on s housing estate serving houses on each
sida.

5. For the district council the material points were that the appeal site did not
have an adequate road frontage. The proposed development would adversely
affect the setting and character of the existing building, and would put at rigk
trees along the east and south boundaries of the appeal site. Although the
appeal proposal itself.would not constitute backland development, it would resuit
in the original dwellinghouse becoming landlocked with ne road frontage, and
hence would be backland development. The appeal proposal would also adversely
affect the outlook and the setting of the 2 bungelows and of the original 2 storey
house along the rear of the original curtilage. In addition, the appeal proposai,
with traffic passing along 3 of the 4 sides of the appeal site, would be overlooked
from all sides. There was no need to release more land for housing in
Helensburgh. If granted planning permission the appeal proposal would set a
Drecedent for similar developments in other parts of the town.

6. For the objectors the material points were that by changing their grounds of
appeal, submitting inaccurate plans and diagrams, and in omitting to notify ail
interested neighbours of the appesl proposal, the appellants had acted improperly
and probably illegally. As there were already 5 separate dwellings on a site
which originally accommodated only one house, the appeal .proposal  would
constitute over-development, It would also be tandem development. It would
increase the problems associated with maintenence of the drive and possibly
overload sewerage within the site, Whichever way the proposed bungalow faced
its back garden would be overlooked from other properties. In turn the appesl
proposal would impinge on the privacy of other houses, adversely affecting their
outlook and setting, and reducing their value. Aveland House, and the large
open garden in front of it, was an important historic feature in this part of
Helensburgh. Bungalows built on either side of the original 2 storey house were
unlike the appeal proposal in that they did not adversely affect the outlook from
other houses, nor were they overlooked from other properties. In such =
cramped back garden trees along the east and south boundaries of the appeal site
were unlikely to survive. There was no desperate shortage of siteg for- housing
in or around Helensburgh.

7.  From my inspection of the appeal site and its surroundings, and the
representations made, I consider the determining issues to be whether the back
garden of the proposed bungalow would be large enough to accommodate the
activities normally carried out in a back garden, and if not what effect the
proposal would be likely to have on the appearance and character of itg

surroundi..gs.

8. 1 accept that the appeal site is larger than that of the 2 bungalows and of
the 1} storied house which have been built within the grounds of the original
house, and that the density which would result from the building of the appeal
proposal would not be unacceptably high, It is also well established that owners
or occupants of property do not have an inherent right for their views or
outlooks over other ground to be protected, In any case provided the appeal
proposal was to be built towards the south east corner of the appeal site, as wasg
suggested by you at the inquiry, it would not intrude into the view of the
bungalow in the north west corner of the original site to a material extent, nor

A1000224.077 2.




Page 62

J S Traill Bsq . PIPPA/SH/O7 ZPangust 1987

wou ot ve seen from the bungalow in the north east corner, or impinge dpon the
view of Aveland House obtainable from the publie footpath at the drive entrance.
Also, altheugh it would be clearly secn from the front rooms of Aveland House,
a8 the distance between the 2 buildings would be greater than is found on many
modern housing estates, I consider that this would not constitute a substantial
objection,

9.  However, in order to avoid the objections referred to by the district council
and the objectors, and upon which | have commented in the previous paragraph,
it would be necessary to locate the proposed development fairly near to the south
east corner of the appeal site. This would result in a relatively small back
garden being available to the occupants of the proposed bungualow, and in a
temptation to carry ~ut activities normally assccisted with a back garden in the
front garden to the detriment of the appearance and character of the locadity.
This would be particularly regrettable on the appeal site as the front garden
would oceupy such an open and prominent position at the side of the drive
serving the 4 dwellings at the rear of the site, In addition, although a
condition or a tree preservation order requiring damaged or destroyed trees to be
replaced could be imposed, the shortage of hack garden space would increase the
risk of damage to the trees, especially those dlong the south boundary of the site
which would put much of the back garden in shade. This would be especially
regrettable as these trees are a pleasing feature of the street scene and in the
setting ~f Aveland House, and in the event of them needing to be replaced
succer: s would take many years to grow to maturity.

10. T have given due consideration to all the other matters raised but they seem
to me to be of insufficient weight to overbalance these views.

11. Accordingly, and in exercise of the powers delegated to me, I hereby
dismiss this appeal.

12. The foregoing decision is final, subject to the right of any person aggrieved
by this decision to apply to the Court of Session within 6 weeks from the date
hereof conferred by sections 231 and 233 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1972; on any such application the Court may quash the decigion if
satisfied that it is not within the powers of the Act or that the applicant's
interests have been substantially prejudiced by a failure to comply with any
requirement of the Act or of the Tribunals and Inquiries Act 1871 or of any
orders, regulations or rules made under these Acts.

13. Copies of this letter have been sent to Dumbarton District Council and to
other parifes who made representations.

Yours faithfully

& Gomnadi

P BONSELL BSc ARICS MRTPI
Inquiry Reporter :

Al1000224.077 3.




Page 63

sAr

Bams wll
i

TAH

RS PR




Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda ltem 3b

From: Everden Jamie []

Sent: 07 January 2012 15:07

To: localreviewprocess

Subject: FW: Intimation to Interested Parties of Receipt of Notice of Review

Attachments: Covering letter for interested parties.doc; Form AB3.doc

Dear Sir or Madam:

I refer to the attached planning application at 91 East Princes Street. I am
unable to attend the hearing but I am strongly opposed to this planning
application as it will overlook my garden ground and reduce significant amount
of light on my garden. I have also checked the title deeds of the property which
state;

- only a greenhouse or garden shed may be erected upon the garden plot, and even
these must have permission.

As a trained property lawyer I would suggest that this proposal does not comply
with the title deeds of the property.

I will be unable to attend the hearing but would like my concerns to be noted.
If I need to submit these in a more formal way would you be able to let me know
as soon as possible and I will arrange for my objections to be submitted in the
correct form.

If you have any other queries please do not hesitate to contact me.
Regards,

Jamie Everden



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

STATEMENT OF CASE
FOR
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE
ERECTION OF A DWELLINGHOUSE (IN PRINCIPLE)
AT GARDEN GROUND OF 91A PRINCES STREET
EAST, HELENSBURGH G84 7DQ

PLANNING APPLICATION
REFERENCE NUMBER 11/00518/PPP
LOCAL REVIEW BODY REFERENCE 12/0001/LRB

18 January 2012



Page 68

INTRODUCTION

The Planning Authority is Argyll & Bute Council (‘the Council’). The appellant is Mr Peoples (‘the
appellant’).

The planning permission in principle application, reference number 11/00518/PPP, for the
erection of a dwellinghouse at garden ground of 91A Princes Street East, Helensburgh, (‘the
appeal site’) was refused under delegated powers on 21 October 2011. The planning
application has been appealed and is subject of referral to a Local Review Body, reference
number 12/0001/LRB.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE

The site is located within the front garden of 91A Princes Street East and measures some 540
sg.m. with a new access being formed onto the adjoining road.

SITE HISTORY

Two previous applications for residential development have been refused in 1983 (C7044) and
1987(C7568) respectively. The latter application was subsequently appealed and the appeal
dismissed.

STATUTORY BASIS ON WHICH THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DECIDED

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 provides that where, in
making any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the Development Plan
and the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. This is the test for this application.

Argyll & Bute Council considers the determining issues in relation to the case are as follows:

Whether the proposal accords with Development Plan policy and whether there are any material
considerations to outweigh these adopted policies. In particular, whether the proposed
development maintains and enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the
character of surrounding development and that development layout is effectively integrated with
the streetscape/townscape setting.

The Report of Handling (Appendix 1) sets out the Council’'s assessment of the application in
terms of Development Plan policy and other material considerations.

COMMENTS ON APPELLANT’S SUBMISSION

The site is within the settlement boundary. In terms of the development plan, there is
encouragement for infill development, especially in the main towns. However, such
development must be appropriate. One measure of appropriateness is the impact on the built
environment.

The report of handling sets out our position on issues of plot size, density and design. The
appeal site is not within a Conservation Area and is big enough to accommodate a modest
dwelling. Moreover, the area has a mix of house styles and plot sizes. Given these issues, will
one more dwellinghouse make any difference?



Helensburgh is a mature settlement with li p@Qnities for infill development. The risk is
that town cramming can occur with houses shoe-horned into any potential gap site. Reference
is made in the reasons for refusal to the issue and importance of streetscape. Streetscape is the
term given to the collective appearance of all buildings, footpaths and gardens along a street.
The streetscape is the visual identity of a neighbourhood and plays an important role in
facilitating interaction between residents and creating a community.

Houses can be diverse in age, shape or style yet combine to create a community identity. At the
same time, a development that is not sympathetic to the existing streetscape can significantly
detract from the character of the neighbourhood.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but unlisted
villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either side of the existing
villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and value in terms of the
immediate streetscape. This will be lost if the development is permitted. The immediate
neighbouring properties to the west of the site also have this open aspect which is considered
worth preserving.

The importance of streetscape and of development that is both appropriate and fits in is
reflected in the policy background contained in the adopted Local Plan. Whilst this has been
covered in the report of handling it is worth reiterating a number of key points. Policy LP ENV 1
makes specific reference that development should protect, restore or where possible enhance
the established character of the area. It also requires regard to be had to the location and nature
of the proposed development.

The particular character and distinctiveness of the area in which the appeal site is located is its
variety with a mix of plot sizes and house types and styles. That variety is not a justification for
another dwellinghouse but for the retention of those elements which contribute to the existing
character. As part of that distinctiveness the existing property at 91A and its curtilage with its
open character has a value in terms of the immediate streetscape particularly in conjunction
with the neighbouring properties to the west. This will be lost if the development proceeds. The
loss of this area and its replacement with a dwellinghouse, access, hardstanding, fences and
other associated suburban development will compromise any remaining amenity value, will be
visually intrusive, visually discordant, and will not maintain or enhance the character of the area.
Consequently, the proposal is not supported by Policy LP ENV 1.

Policy LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Local Plan take a similar line and put more flesh on
the bones in relation to specific aspects of such proposals. They stress the importance of
development setting and layout. Development with poor quality layouts including over-
development should be resisted. The proposed development, by virtue of its relationship with
the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa would erode
the remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location be a dominant
and obtrusive form of development. The proposal is therefore also contrary to Policy LP ENV 19
and Appendix A.

The Council’'s ‘Sustainable Design Guidance’ gives advice on how to approach sustainable
urban infill. It offers three possible solutions. The first is contemporary landmark which is
sensitive design of a high architectural quality which is essentially of a different architectural
style to the buildings surrounding it. The second option is a design which more obviously is
based on the architecture of the buildings adjacent. Finally, there is traditional design. In this
case the application is for planning permission in principle and any issue in terms of design
would be dealt with by a further application if the appeal is successful. However, the design
guidance also highlights the importance of the need to integrate buildings into their setting. It is



easy to spot those buildings which are qompgdiblE(Jvith their settings and those which are not.
For the reasons set out above, it is not considered that an additional dwellinghouse, shoe-
horned into this site, will protect, restore or enhance the established character of the area.

As there is a clear lack of policy support for the proposed development, Section 25 of the Act
also requires other material considerations to be taken into account, which may overcome the
policy deficit. In this case, the site history is the key material consideration. Two previous
applications for residential development have been refused in 1983 (C7044) and 1987(C7568)
respectively. The latter application was subsequently appealed and the appeal dismissed.
Whilst the Local Plan is different, the fundamental underlying concerns are the same. The
importance of streetscape and of development that is both appropriate and fits in is still crucial.
In that regard there has been little change in policy or circumstances that would support a
different outcome from the three previous refusals. The proposed development, by virtue of its
relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing
villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location
be a dominant and obtrusive form of development.

CONCLUSION

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997 requires that all decisions be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. New
development should maintain and enhance residential areas by ensuring that it has regard to
the character of surrounding development and that development layout is effectively integrated
with the streetscape/townscape setting.

The further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the principle
elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and undermine the remaining value it
has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant, and would not maintain
or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP
ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and the Council’'s Design Guide
which require that new development maintains and enhances the residential area by ensuring
that it has regard to the character and density of surrounding development and that
development layout and density be effectively integrated with the streetscape/townscape
setting.

Taking account of the above, it is respectfully requested that the appeal be dismissed.



Page 71 Appendix 1

Argyll and Bute Council
Development & Regulatory Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle

Reference No: 11/00518/PPP
Planning Hierarchy: Local Application
Applicant:  Mr Peoples

Proposal: Site for the erection of a dwellinghouse (In principle)

Site Address: Garden Ground of 91A Princes Street East, Helensburgh G84 7DQ

DECISION ROUTE

(i) Sect 43 (A) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

(A) THE APPLICATION
(i) Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
- Erection of dwellinghouse and formation of access (In principle)
(i) Other specified operations

- Connection to public water and sewerage

(B) RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be refused for the reasons stated overleaf.

(C) HISTORY: C 7044 — Erection of dwelling (outline) (Refused 31/8/1983)
C 7568 — Erection of dwelling (outline) (Refused 00/0/1987 and subsequent
appeal dismissed)

(D) CONSULTATIONS: Scottish Water — letter dated 08.04.2011 — no objections
Area Manager Roads — memo dated 12.04.2011 — no objections
subject to conditions

(E)  PUBLICITY: None

(F) REPRESENTATIONS: Four representations were received from



Mrs. Maud Stevens 97, East Princ%gée?tgletter received — 21 .4.2011)
t(l

Mrs Anne Begg 91, East Princess Stre

etter dated - 27.04.2011)

Mr and Mrs J. Hall, 91c, East Princess Street (letter dated - 18.04.2011)
Jamie Everden — no address given (email - 19.04.2011)

The points raised and comments are as follows —

1.

10.

11.

12.

The proposed house would overlook the garden ground of 91b East Princess
Street.

Comment — This area is situated to the west of the proposed site and it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any
unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this
adjacent garden.

An extra house would mean more vehicles using the existing access.
Comment — The Area Manager Roads has no objection to the proposal.

The existing house on the site is a Victorian villa and the new building will not be in
keeping with and will detract from the Victorian style building.
Comment — See assessment

An extra dwellinghouse will create more noise in the vicinity during construction
and from the residents.

Comment — Excessive noise from premises is not considered a material planning
consideration and can be monitored by other appropriate legislation.

The proposed house will block light and sun from the back garden of 97 East
Princess Street.

Comment — Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from a single storey dwellinghouse.

The proposed house will reduce privacy to the back garden of 97 East Princess
Street which is used extensively by the proprietor who has severe medical
problems.

Comment - Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would be any
unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site into this
adjacent garden.

The proposed garage will block light and sun to the front garden of 97 East
Princess Street

Comment - Being situated to the west of 97 East Princess Street it is not
anticipated that considering the sun path that there will be unacceptable shadow
cast or loss of light from the proposed development.

The proposed house will increase overlooking of adjacent properties.

Comment - It is not considered that given suitable boundary treatment there would
be any unacceptable overlooking from a single storey dwellinghouse on the site
into adjacent properties.

The proposed house will be overlooked by the tenement properties across East
Princess Street.

Comment — These properties are located some 18m. across Princes Street East
which complies with guidance on window to window distances.

There will be a loss of established trees.
Comment — See my assessment.

The bus stop will have to be moved to the front of 97 East Princess Street.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Comment — There is adequat§tjepd fip@age for the bus top to be relocated. This
is outwith normal planning functions and will be coordinated by the Area Roads
Manager and the appropriate bus operator.

There are enough houses on the site and there is no need for additional houses in
Helensburgh.

Comment — Sites in the area exhibit differing densities some of which are
compatible with the proposal and each site is considered on its own merit with
regards to compatibility with policies in the adopted Local Plan.

The proposal will require a new access through the existing wall. The sight lines at
this access are poor and the formation of an access will mean the loss of two
parking spaces on the road.

Comment — The Area Roads Manager has no objection to the proposal.

The proposal should be refused as it was in 1983 and 1987.
Comment — The application is considered under current Local Plan Policies in
relation to the settlement pattern of the area.

Another property will place extra burdens on existing water and sewerage services.
Comment — Scottish Water have no objections to the proposal.

The site already has two flats and two houses on it and another house will
represent overdevelopment.
Comment — See assessment.

The current proposal gives no indication of the height of the house and even a
single storey house would look directly into the living room and bedroom of 91c
east Princess Street.

Comment — The application is for a development in principle and as such there is
no requirement to indicate the proposed height of the house. It is considered
however that the site is only suitable for a single storey house and a condition is
proposed to that effect.




(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION Page 74

Has the application been the subject of:

Environmental Statement: N

An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: N

A design or design/access statement: N

A report on the impact of the proposed development e.g. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: N

Summary of main issues raised by each assessment/report

N/A

(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

(i)

Is a Section 75 agreement required: N

U]

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or

32: N

)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application

(i)

(ii)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.

‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002

STRAT DC 1 — Development within the Settlements

‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009

LP ENV 1 — Impact on the General Environment

LP ENV 19 — Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP HOU 1 — General Housing Development

LP TRAN 6 — Vehicle Parking Provision

Appendix A — Sustainable Siting and Design Principles
Appendix C — Access and Parking Standards

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular
4/20009.

Argyll & Bute Sustainable Design Guidance (2006)

(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment: N




(L)

o Page 75 - .
Has the application been the subjett of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): N

(M) Has a sustainability check list been submitted: N
(N) Does the Council have an interest in the site: N
(O) Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): N

(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations

Planning permission is sought in for the erection of a dwellinghouse and associated
garage and access. The site is located within the front garden of 91a Princes Street East
with a new access being formed onto Princes Street East. The site measures some 540
sq.m. Two previous applications for residential development have been refused in 1983
and 1987 respectively. The latter application was subsequently appealed and the appeal
dismissed.

Plot sizes in the vicinity vary and are generally larger than the proposed plot although
there are a few of comparable or smaller size notably the two plots to the north of the
site adjacent to the railway. The proposed dwellinghouse and garage although indicative
measure some 138 sq.m. floor area. This represents some 25% of the plot. The useable
private garden area would be some 340 sq.m. The proposed plot at the nearest point
would be located some 13m. from the existing housing to the rear. The pattern of
development in Princes Street East is varied with some buildings being constructed in
the area of ground fronting the street with other buildings occupying the rear areas.
Immediately to the west of the site there are a number of large villas set to the back of
the plots with ancillary development such as garages to the front.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and
value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its
relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the
existing villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and
would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form of development. Consequently,
the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the
principle elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and undermine the
remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant,
and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be
contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan and the Council’'s Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density
of surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively
integrated with the streetscape/townscape setting.

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states that “Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.” Section 37 (2) of the Town and Country
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 further states that “In dealing with such an application the
authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material
to the application, and to any other material considerations.”



The two previous refusals on this Plig ged 1@ appeal decision are the key material
considerations in this case. The two previous applications were refused on the basis that
density would be increased to an unacceptable level and would also establish a second
layer of residential development which would set an undesirable precedent. Current
Local Plan policy is less concerned with second tier development, subject to certain
caveats. Equally, the Reporter in the appeal decision was less concerned with the
resultant density created by the previous proposal. His concern was whether the back
garden of the proposed bungalow would be large enough to accommodate the activities
normally carried out in a back garden, and if not what effect the proposal would be likely
to have on the appearance and character of the area.

The conclusion was that the proposal would be to the detriment of the appearance and
character of the area. The Reporter was also concerned about the impact of the
proposal on existing trees on site. This is still an issue with the current application as
three mature trees could be compromised by the proposed house and access. Whilst the
trees have value and the Council has a duty to protect good specimens | am of the view
that their value is limited.

In conclusion, the site is within the settlement boundary, is not within a Conservation
Area and is big enough to accommodate a modest dwelling. However, overall | consider
that the existing unlisted villa and its remaining curtilage still has streetscape value which
would be lost if the development goes ahead. In policy terms it cannot be supported as it
would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. In terms of material
considerations the previous site history is crucial. It adds weight to the policy refusal and
it is not considered that there has been a material change in circumstances that would
merit approval.

Q)

Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Y

(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle should
be granted

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but
unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either
side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and
value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its
relationship with the street frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the
existing villa would erode the remaining open character of this existing property and
would by its location be a dominant and obtrusive form of development. Consequently,
the further sub-division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the
principle elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and undermine the
remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually discordant,
and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it would be
contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan and the Council’'s Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density
of surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively
integrated with the streetscape/townscape setting.

(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan

N/A

(T

Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: N




Page 77

Author of Report: Howard Young Date: 19/10/2011
Reviewing Officer: Date:

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services



REASONS FOR REFUSAL RELATIVE WL‘[QATION REF. NO. 11/00518/PPP

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional but unlisted
villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by development either side of the existing
villa but the property and its curtilage still have an open character and value in terms of the
immediate streetscape. The proposed development, by virtue of its relationship with the street
frontage to East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa would erode the
remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location be a dominant and
obtrusive form of development. Consequently, the further sub-division of the curtilage and the
erection of a dwellinghouse on the principle elevation of this existing traditional property would
erode and undermine the remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive,
visually discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As such it
would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute
Local Plan and the Council’s Design Guide which require that new development maintains and
enhances the residential area by ensuring that it has regard to the character and density of
surrounding development and that development layout and density be effectively integrated with
the streetscape/townscape setting.

NOTES TO APPLICANT

1. For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details
specified on the application form dated 25 March 2011 and the refused drawing reference
number 2A.



Pag'? 79
APPENDIX TO DECISI APPROVAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 11/00518/PPP

(A) Has the application required an obligation under Section 75 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)?
N

(B) Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms
of Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) to the initial submitted plans during its processing?
N

(C) The reason why planning permission has been refused.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be located within the curtilage of a traditional
but unlisted villa. The curtilage has previously been compromised by
development either side of the existing villa but the property and its curtilage still
have an open character and value in terms of the immediate streetscape. The
proposed development, by virtue of its relationship with the street frontage to
East Princes Street and its location in front of the existing villa would erode the
remaining open character of this existing property and would by its location be a
dominant and obtrusive form of development. Consequently, the further sub-
division of the curtilage and the erection of a dwellinghouse on the principle
elevation of this existing traditional property would erode and undermine the
remaining value it has in the streetscape, would be visually intrusive, visually
discordant, and would not maintain or enhance the character of the area. As
such it would be contrary to Policies LP HOU 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of
the Argyll and Bute Local Plan and the Council’'s Design Guide which require that
new development maintains and enhances the residential area by ensuring that it
has regard to the character and density of surrounding development and that
development layout and density be effectively integrated with the
streetscape/townscape setting.



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81 Agenda ltem 3c

Response to the Statement of Case
By Argyll and Bute Planning Authority

On the Delegated Refusal for the erection of a Dwellinghouse ( in principle )

in Garden Ground of 91A Princes Street East Helensburgh Argyll and Bute G84 7DQ

for Mr Peoples
91A Princes Street East Helensburgh G84 7DQ
Application Ref. — 11/ 00518 / PPP

Local Review Body Ref. - 12 /0001 / LRB

The Planning Authority have in their statement basically reiterated the points made in
the original Report of Handling which were fully analysed in the previous Local Review
Body appeal statement.

The following points however are made in relation to the statement.
The planning Authority has remarked that there is a risk of town cramming occurring.

As illustrated in the previous statement the proposed house plot would not increase the
density of the area to an unacceptable level and the house plot is in itself larger in size
than many other plots in the vicinity.

This density analysis was not challenged by the Planning Authority.

It is reiterated therefore that the proposed plot would not result in an unacceptable
increase in the overall density of the area and that the plot in the proposed position would
not constitute the cramming of a property into an unacceptable small plot to the detriment
of adjacent properties or the area as a whole.

The proposal therefore has regard to the character and density of surrounding
development and that the development layout and density is effectively integrated with
the overall density of the area and the streetscape/townscape setting.

The Planning Authority maintains that the proposal will result in a loss of the open
character of development in the vicinity.

As previously outlined in the Review Body Statement the character of the area is varied
and is not dominated by a sense of openness.

It is maintained that as previously outlined that the proposal follows the townscape
elements along Princes Street East which consists of a mixture of development including
two tier development with houses being located behind other dwellings and buildings.



Page 82

As also previously illustrated principal views into and from the site will be largely
maintained and as such the development will be representative of the varied townscape of
the area.

5. With regards to the previous appeal decision on the site the Planning Authority whilst
accepting the current Local Plan has different policies maintains that the fundamental
concerns are the same.

These differences are not expounded nor are the points made by the reporter recognised.

The reporter did not dismiss the concept of a dwellinghouse on the site but considered the
determining issue to be the resultant size of the associated garden.

As outlined in the previous Notice of Review Statement the application under review
now conforms with the standards contained within the current adopted Local Plan with
regards to housing development.

6. With regards to the objection maintained by Mr Jamie Everden the following points are
submitted

As far as can be ascertained from the correspondence forwarded or the Report of
Handling Mr Everden has not submitted an address so it is difficult to respond to his
points concisely with regards to the relationship between his property and the site.

However, the whole question of overlooking with regards to surrounding properties was
fully investigated at the time of the application by the Planning Authority and as
illustrated in the Report of Handling it was concluded that the proposal would not lead to
any unacceptable overlooking of adjacent properties.

The points raised concerning possible restrictions on the Title Deeds of the property are
legal points and as such are not material planning considerations in relation to
determining this application.

7. Considering the above points and the original points made in the Local Review Statement

it is maintained that the proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development
Plan and that there are no adverse material considerations.

It is respectfully submitted therefore that the proposal for the erection of a dwellinghouse
(in principle) should be granted planning consent.

Ian MacLeod Chartered Architect
2 Kidston Drive
Helensburgh G84 8QA

1* February 2012



Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a Notice of Review and Supporting Documents
	3b Comments from Interested Parties
	0518 - Statement of Case finalised report

	3c Applicant's Response to Comments from Interested Parties

